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Myra Falls

Myra Falls is an

underground mine

located in Strathcona-

Westmin Provincial

Park in central

Vancouver Island,

British Columbia. The | Langlois

mine is linked to the The Langlois mine is an

part of Campbell River | underground mine located

by a 90 km paved road. | 47 kilometres north-east of
Lebel-sur-Quévillon and'
213 kilometres north !
of Val d'Or. The mine |

Zinclides 22,500 Tonne Lz
Eé_r‘aay concentrato: %gf"

I Fand.retated |nfrastructure 2.

o 7

[ Bouchard -Hébert

The Bouchard-Hébert
?‘rﬁill-ls'bemg leftin place
[ S

pending tha&g‘sulls of
exploration actlvmes in
ithe lmmedlata wcrn:ty is being left in place \
orﬁlsewhere iFihe pending the results af;

%

Companys nréperties. exploratlon activitiestin
the |mmed_|ate vicinity

L
or elsewhere in the
Company’s properties.

o7

Bgygrme )
The Bnugrme mill

El Mochito

The El Mochito mine,
located in Honduras,

Central America, is in
its fifty-seventh year

of production.

Breakwater Resources Ltd.

Is a Canadian-based company
engaged in the acquisition, exploration,
development and mining of base metal

El Toqui . . .

The E1Toqui mine s deposits in the Americas and North

located in Chile . . 0o
approximatety 1,200 Africa. Breakwater is focused on building
kilometres south . v pn ..

of Santiago. a world-class diversified mining company.
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Message to Shareholders | ’

il

In April of last year | began my message to shareholders with a sampling of

headlines and quotations from various publications like the IVIetaIs Insider, Dow

Jones, Economic Times {India} and Bloomberg which trumpeted the performance

of zinc and its prospects for the short to medium term. The market§ certainly delivered
and, in combination with the fast tracking of Langlois, excellent resfults at £l Mochito
and El Toqui, steady progress at Myra Falls, resulted in a break- out year for Breakwater.
Cne year ago, we reported to you that the Company had earned a Ilttie over $14 million,
on average, realized zinc prices of just under $1,300 per tonne. In 2006 net earnings
were over 11 times greater at $156 million on average, realized zing prices of $3,200 per
tonne, a remarkable year. On April 13, 2006 | reported that the prlce stood at US$1.40
per pound of zinc and that inventories on the London Metal Exchaﬁge (LME) totaled
213,225 tonnes. Yesterday, March 12, 2007 the official cash price for zinc on the LME
was US$1.47 with a total of 92,075 tonnes of refined zinc sitting in LME warehouse
inventories after reaching a high of US$2.09 per pound with LME V\frlarehouse inventories
touching a fow df 84,025 in the first week of December 2006.

Despite being over 8,000 tonnes higher than the low reached in December 2005 global refined zinc
inventories remain critically low. Analysts variously estimate that the global refined

zinc market will either be in balance or in marginal deficit this year. Consecﬂhently, we believe
prices for refined zinc will remain well above historical averages this year and into 2008.

We intend to take mammum advantage of this environment by optlmlzmg our assets through

the right mvestments in capital infrastructure and exploration. Breakwaters business plan remains

simple and focused. We will invest in capital projects to increase the prodl‘chtlwty efficiency

and effectiveness of our operations. As noted ahove, we will increase our mvestment in overall
exploration and we w{:ll acquire value added

“In 200 6 ; net pro_]ect.s or assets. V\ni"e will do this w‘hlle

maintaining production costs that will sustain

11 ¢ { .
earnlngs were Over the Compaﬂvthfough‘mostmarketcondltlons.

Our plan in 2007 is to/spend $94.3 million on

11 tim_es gl‘eater AT  the development of Langlois and its satellite

. . 99 deposit, Grevet B, anld on improvements to
$ 1 56 mllllon v the El Mochito, Myra Falls, and El Toqui
: mines. Additionally, we plan to spend
$27.0 million on ex‘ploration at our sites with the objective of substantially inlcreasing the mineral
reserves and mineral resources. These increased, planned expenditures reflect recent successes
in target identification and address past under-investment in the Company’s highly perspective
properties. As always, we will continue to look at all alternatives to grow value for the shareholder.
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Looking ahead to the balance of 200;-' and into 2008, we continue to see a strong zinc market
as inventories continue to decline or stabilize at these low levels. While the markets will certainly
not be without volatility, we

]
“We lntel‘ld to take expect that, with our well

managed and professionally

maXimum ad"fantage Of staffed operations and a

seasoned management team

thiS ellVil‘Ol’lment by that is dedicated to the

success and future growth
optimizing our assets...” ofteComan, weuilbe
well positioned to enjoy
robust markets for several years. It i§ through the efforts of our employees, combined with the
support of our shareholders, thatwil‘l enable us to continue to operate safe and profitable mines
and expand our operations in a prudent manner. We wish to thank our employees and shareholders

for this continued support.

A

George E. Pirie

|
|
i
President and Chief Executiv!e Officer
|
March 13, 2006 [

|
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2006 Highlights

: i Years ended December 31,
(Canad:an $ millions except share and per share numbers) 2006 2005 °
e ‘ ] trestated}
S P I
) ‘ ¥
Net revenue 1 34 2076 :
I
Net earnings | 156.5 140 .
Basic earnings per Common Share i 0.4 0.04 ‘T
Diluted earnings per Common Share 0.37 004
Net cash provided:by operating activities ' 158.5 18.7 | 1
Capital expenditures l 75.7 356 .
o . A ij’
Basic weighted-average number of Common Shares outstanding (000's) l 383,748 369,190 !
Number of Common Shares outstandmg {000's) ‘ 385,646 380,917 4
. #
SMEEEJ g :3.
. . - : 5\
Cash and cash equivalents ' 81.4 18.7 |
Working capital | 109.8 4.4
Total assets | | 5093 3426 |
Total debt - _ 1 27 197 |
Shareho!d‘ers' equity . l 308.6 148.2 | ]
Opertional (EEE@) .i
@nmﬂhﬂ(ﬁmmﬂ) ' 2,003.9 2,468.6
d
Zinc {tonnes) i 209.1 268.7
Copper {tonnes) i 29 354
Lead (tonnes) . . i 17 3 28.7
Gold {tonnes] ! | 4.1
Metalintconcentrates) y .
Zinc {tonnes) 1- | 107 1 1413
Capper (tonnes) J ' 8.1
Lead {tonnes) | [ H B . 192
Silver {ounces) v 27217 3,059.9
Gold {ounces) j 57.2 76.0
: T
Total Cash Costs . .
Per pound payable zinc sold (US$) - “ 0.65 0.39
EXPLORE, INVEST, OPTIMIZE
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Reserves and Resources

|
|
|
|

Myra Falls

" December31,2006 .. . b
Tonnes ,"Zn ' P:h Cu Ag  Au' | Cu Ag Au
oo0s) (% (%1 (%) gt (g} -

e e

Proven and Prbbaple Reserves

El Mochito
El Toqui -
Langlois -

Total

Measured and'lnd[icated Resources™

6,134
2,899
. 2869
3,658
15,560

5.7
6:1
82
101

13

Myra Falls
El Mochito
El Toqui *
Langlois

Total

~ *Includes proven and probable reserves but excludes inierre_d'

‘Inferred Resources

Myra Falls
El Mochito
El Toqui~
Langlois

Total

1224
3199
3,597
5,699

19,119

4341
2,480
462
1,808

13,345

72

6.7
89
10.7

84

" 69
57

‘85

88

- 185
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Reserves and Resources
On February 22, 2007, the Company released its 2006 mineral reserve and mineral resource statement’

to the public and this excerpt should be reaI
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d in conjunction with that news release.
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Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

!

l

l
This management’s dlscussuon and analysis of financial condition and results of operat ons {"MD&A”")
of Breakwater ﬂesources Ltd. (the “Company”) should be read in conjunction with the (iiompanys audited
consofidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, and related notes thereto which have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principlesl( GAAP”). Unless
otherwise indicated, thns MD&A has been prepared as of March 21, 2007. The reportmg currency is Canadian
doflars and alt amounts disclosed are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated. Unless the context indicates
otherwise, a reference to the “Company” in this MD&A means Breakwater Resources Ltd and its subsidiaries
and other entities owned or controlted, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

The Company is a mmmg, exploration and development company which produces zinc, . copper, lead and gold
concentrates. During 2006, the Company’s concentrate production was derived from mines located in Canada,
Chite and Honduras. The Company also owns base metal and gold exploration propemes in Canada, Honduras,
Tunisia and Chile. The Bouchard-Hébert mine, located in Canada, was closed in Februarv 2005 and the Bougrine
mine, located in Tunisia, was closed in September 2005. Both the Bouchard-Hébert andh the Bougrine mines were
closed due to the depletion of mineral reserves. The closure of the Bouchard-Hébert and Bougrine mines in 2005
affect all aspects of the Company's financial results which makes comparisons between years difficutt.

!
HIGHLIGHTS |

* The Company realized net earnings of $156.5 million or $0.41 per share in 2006 compared with $14.0 million
or $0.04 per share in 2005, a $142.5 million increase

s The contributioh from mining activities was $168.5 million in 2006 compared with $29 b million in 2005

* Net cash prowded by operating activities increased by $139.8 million to $158.5 ITII||I0n in 2006 and was
primarily used for $75.7 m||1|on of capital expenditures and $16.6 million of debt repavment

* At December 31 2006, cash and cash equivalents were $81.4 miflion and total debt was $2.7 million

*  (ross sales revenue increased by 44.5% to $452.2 million in 2006 from $313.0 mllllun in 2005

* Development ef the Langlois mine is on track to commence commercial product:r.:m by mid-2007

*  Mineral reserves at Langlois increased by 10% and mineral resources increased by 14% through the
addition of the Grevet B deposit

* Exploration success at Langlois prompted the Company to stake an additional 4,000 hectares surrounding
the Company’s I:and package

* Development of El Toqui's Concordia deposit is on track and production is anticipated by mid-2007

+  0Onthe Coulon jumt venture with Virginia Mines Inc., exploration carried out durlng 2006 {ed to the discovery
of two new significant polymetallic lenses, bringing the total known lenses ta 1‘rve| and confirmed the
vertical continuity of lens 9-25 to a depth of 365 metres

Reserves and Reso;urces
On February 22, 2007, t!:e Company released its 2006 mineral reserve and minera! resourlfe statement to

the public. References in this MD&A to 2006 mineral reserves and resources should be read in conjunction
with that news release%.

EXPLORE, INVEST, OPTIMIZE 5
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishi?g and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting.
Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on
“Internal Control - Integrated Framework”j issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based an this evaluation, management concluded that the Company's internal control over financial
reporting was effective as at December 3;1, 2006.

|

|

OUTLOOK

I
In 2007, the Company plans to: I
|

« Investin capital projects to increa%e the productivity, efficiency and eftectiveness of the
Company's operations

* Substantially increase the investment in overall exploration

* Advance mine exploration and dev’e!opment ta significantly increase reserves and resources,
both quantitatively and qualitatively, specifically at Langlois and El Toqui

* Commence commercial productioﬁ at the Langlois mine and Concordia deposit

¢ Acquire value added projects or assets

The Company’s projected payable metials production for 2007 is:

Zing. . uhu A e 120700, tonnes
Copper o i . S 8000 tor}\nes'
Lesd A 250 oines
Sikver i 2,002,000 ounces
Gold G ] L 43000 qiinces

These projections are based on the following:

|
i

j 1" Myra Falls - "E'I_Mochi.g{.:i‘, L lCE Toqui I;;nrg‘!uis""’_'-All Opérations -
Ore Milled-{tonnes)” " " %7 - 856,000 - -T/607000 - - “TS3T000 . .394000 2,394,000
Zinc {%) B 59 59 .Y B8 i 80 . 66
Copper (%) A NMA L s NA- o 05 NA
Lead (%) ° I ¥ T S S VS 7
- Gold (gt} . 3. .0 NA- 22 NA . NA
‘silver (gt} g2 T 86 T 188 T NA T NA
Payable Metal B S R S RO A
Zinc {tonnes) 38,100 2500 - 25800 28300 " 121,700
Copper {tonnes) .+ - 6700 . - NAC < NA . 1300 .- 8000
Lead {tonnes) - ‘90 g0 - 2700 . N/AT 125000
Silver founces), -~ . * 659000 . 1121000 0101000 121000 2,002,000
“Gold (ourices} ** 17000 G NJA iS00 - T NA 43000

T
{1)tncludes both pre-production and commergial production at Langlois.

BREAKWATER RESOURCES LTD.




Capital Expenditures
Capital expenditures for the Company's aperations are planned to be $34.3 million in 2907. Of this
amount, the bulk of funds are related to the development of Langlois and the satellite Grevet B deposit,
improvements to the: El Mochito and Myra Falls mines and upgrading mobile equipment at all the

operations. :
Capital Expenditure's -
{8 millions) 2007 Projection
Myra Falls o 18.7
El Mochito o 215
El Toqui ; 148
Langlois 1' s 393
]
Total Capital ! 94.3
|

Exploration |
It is expected that thje Company will spend $27.0 million on exploration expenditures ir|1I 2007 with the objective
of substantially increasing the proven and probable mineral reserves at Langlois and El Toqui and the mineral
resources {both measured and indicated and inferred) at El Mochito and Myra Falls alls;| well as advancing a number
of greenfield exploration targets. The breakdown of exploration expenditures is set forth in the following table.

{8 millians} _L

El Toqui R 107
Langlois . : : 6.2
Myra Falls v ' 37
El Mochito _ 3.2
Tunisia ‘ 0.5
Bouchard-Hébert 0.2
Others D : 25
Exploration Expeudi_tilres ; 210

Reclamation Expénditures
Cash required for reclamation work in 2007 is expected to be $5.6 million, significantly;less than in 2006 as
the bulk of the work at the Company’s closed sites has been completed.

SENSITIVITY TO METAL PRICES, ZINC SMELTER
TREATMENT CHARGES AND EXCHANGE RATES

The Company’s cash?flow and net earnings are sensitive to the price of zinc, smelter treatment charges for

zinc and the US$/CS éxchange rate. The fallowing table provides the Company's estim‘a‘tes af the sensitivity of
cash flow to changes in the various metal prices, smelter treatment charges for zinc and US$/C$ exchange rate
movements based on projections for 2007. The Company’s projection for 2007 is based on a US$/C$ exchange rate

of $0.91/$1.00. The sensitivity table assumes that all other prices and/or the exchange rate are held constant.

EXPLORE, INVEST, OPTIMIZE 7
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Lead .
Copper -
Silver
Gold -
Exchange rate
Zing smelter treatment charges

0 Ullpound S
0Mfpound’. - - 200
0.10founce, - . 200
IDjounce - 400
0.01/C$1.00. - 3,300
5% - 3,800

Slatement of Upemtmns and Retame

_Earnings (Deficit} and Statement of Cas
Flows Dala *
b e ey

Gross sales revenue
Treatment and marketing costs
Net rovenue o
Tutal operating costs
. Contnbutmn Jrom mmlng;actlwt
- Net earmngs S Rk
. Basi¢’ eafmngs per Commnn Share =
Diluted .earnings per Common Share ”
Net cash provided by operating acu\nue
Capital expenditures

2

Basic weighted-average number of -
Common Shares outstanding (000's) . f

‘Balarice Sheet Data P

511?

{$ miflions} . - co l-f(:

Cash and tash equivalents
Working capital
Total assets,_
Total debt
Total long-term liabilities
_ Shareho!ders’ equity

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company,changed its accounting policy for exploration expenditures. Under
the new policy, which has been retroactively applied, all exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred
until the mineral deposit is deemed commercially recoverable, at which time all subsequent development costs
are capitalized. The Company believes thtsI policy provides more reliable and relevant information aligning the
Company’s policy with a significant majonty of large and mid-size mining companies glabally and therefore will
make peer and industry comparisons easier. Also see notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

|
|
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STATEMENT OF OIPERATIONS REVIEW - 2006 AND 2005

|
Gross Sales Revenue

Gross sales revenue from the sale of zinc, copper, lead, and gold concentrates increased by 44% to

$452.2 million. Higher metal prices accounted for this increase, which was partially offset by decreased

denominated in United States dollars {"US$"}.

|

“Gross Sales Revenue by Meta Lo
!___{S mn'!rons) o . 2006 .o 2005
“Zinc (USS) el 3004 | L7860
Copper{USS): | i 39.3 er 382
‘Lead {US$) 137 SO L7
_Gold (USS) LT S % A
Silver.(uss) " . v RS I R P F A R
Hedgmg mark:to; market and. other o (0.2} - {25)_]
Totat gross sales’ revenue lUS$]~«",' RS 398.0 L. 1A
__._veariv.average:.‘ L e 1.1362 2188 ]
Total gross sales revenue (CS);'* .,9*,.?» R ‘4522 L N38
3
Salas hv Concentrata bl - ‘ T
. ftonnés) : i 2006 cT 2005
: | - i
Zinc | 2736 |- 273267
Copper 25,120 oL whlaag
lead® @ - . - 16,556 © - 40,685
L Gold: . Ty o KRN 2721 1,237
Total -, - [ g .o | . 261,749 " 367,630 -

T

L% LA .
~Sales by Payable Metal KRR 2006
T —————

e —
Zinc {tonnes): . 93897 120 330 ,
*Co‘pper(tonnés)‘ et ‘5,442 L 11,089 -
Lead (tonnes) | i 10,611 23, _959
'Gold(uuncesl 42,210 * 51,7200
Sﬂver(ounces) 55 2,070,612 . ©.2,505,126 .

_ |
Realized Prices ; 2006 [
Zine (USS/tonna} | am “yagr

- Copper (US&'tnnne) 7.217 . 3 543

" Lead {US$/tonne) - 1,297 S 983

* Gold (USS/ounce) - 559 .
Sllver(USS.{ounceJ 10.28 . O 7
Average LME Metél,f’;icéé" . q 5 '

& Foreign Exchange Rate ~ - 2006 2005
Zine {US$ftonne) - - 1 3255 | . 13s1-
Copper (US$/tonne) - + - 6,720 © 3878
Lead (USSftonne) @ If,h' 1,288 R L
.Gold (US$/ounce) -~ !' : 805 L. MEv,
Silver (US$/ounce)’ ) “ 1w o 132
Exchange rate [CWUS$) vearlv average o 1,131 R i) L RN

EXPLORE, |1

concentrate sales - 261,749 tonnes in 2006 compared with 367,630 tonnes in 2005, a strcjnznger Canadian doliar and

hedging losses of $4.3 million {2005 - $2.9 million). The lower tonnage of concentrate sQld in 2006 was due to the
closure of the Bouchard-Hébert and Bougrine mines in 2005 and lower concentrate sales from all other operations.

l
E
|

NVEST,

Sales of concentrate fluctuate period to period due to production levels, shipping volumes, ship schedules, price
determination terms, and risk and title transfer terms with the Company’s various customers. The recognition of
sales can be as much as six months after the date of concentrate production. The Company's sales are primarily

OPTIMIZE




The Company has a relatively conservativ:re revenue recognition policy which, among other things, requires final
pricing of concentrate inventaries prior to recognition of revenue. Using commodity prices and exchanges rates
prevailing at December 31, 2006, the following schedule provides details regarding inventories shipped but not
recognized for revenue purposes and thei related provisional payments.

. - ¢ . ‘ : -7 . Weighted-

Net smeller, invemnry f- - Earnings Provisional. _ average
return - j. C % value . " before taxes = - payments. =~ months to
{0005 ™ (waﬂs} {8000's) {80005} < settlement
1443 - 10889, - 14,758 23561 13
10,429 . 8,506 1,923 T 30
2437 1,050 1,387 : 695 1.1
38,309 0205 18,084 20,206

. .
As at December 31, 2005, the Company e?tlmated that inventories shipped but not recognized for revenue
purposes had earnings before tax of $7.3imillion consisting of $31.2 million of net smelter return less
$23.9 million of inventory value. I

The Company periodically hedges againslt fluctuations in metal prices and foreign exchange rates with the use

of forward sales or options. The Company has not applied hedge accounting historically; therefore, mark-to-market
gains or losses have been included in gréss sales revenue at the end of each period. The Company did not have
any commodity or foreign exchange hedglles as at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005, the Company had
1,050,000 ounces of silver call options with an average strike price of US$7.50 per ounce maturing from January

to June 2006 and had 25,000 ounces of gold call options with an average strike price of US$455 per ounce

maturing in December 2006.

Net Revenue

Net revenue, the value of concentrates sold after deducting treatment charges and freight and marketing costs,
increased by 56% to $324.4 million in 2006 from $207.6 million in 2005. Total treatment charges, the amount paid
to smelters for refining concentrates to produce metal, and shipping and marketing costs were 21% higher at
$127.8 million in 2006 compared with $1{15 4 million in 2005. On a per tonne of cancentrate sold basis, total
treatment charges increased to $488 perltonne in 2006 compared with $287 per tonne in 2005,

Direct Operating Costs
Direct operating costs were 7% lower in 2006 at $134.6 million compared with $144.3 million in 2005, as 29%
fewer tonnes of concentrate were sold and the average cost per tonne of concentrate sold increased to $614 in
2006 from $393 in 2005. The increase in the average direct operating cost per tonne sold was due to the closure
of the lower cost Bougrine and Bouchard Hébert mines in 2005 and significant increases in direct operating
costs per tonne at Myra Falls and El MOChItO partially offset by a decrease in direct operating costs per

tonne sold at El Toqui.

10 BREAKWATER RESOURCES]| LTD.




|

Direct ﬂperﬁi-ing Costs - . 2005 " 2005

¥ I . T, . i
T : ‘ Concentrate Costper |, : ' Concentrate - Cost per 4‘%
Aggregate sold tonne Aggregate ( sold - tonne
. _ {% mitfions) . ftonnes} (3 (Smitians) ' ftannes) . (8-
MyaFalls . - 5 . 839 111,603 moL e § a3 . 51 )
" El Mochito RS IR B Y] 333 298 ! 103,066 - 289
El Toqui i 189 54,874 345 222 ' 59,355 374 !'

‘Bougrine o 0.0 0 - 148 ! 58,255 - C254
- Bouchard-Hghert i 00 0 - 04 30,815 C 3

) . ¥

Total i 1346 21,743 514 W3 367630 393
L h

The total cash cost per pound of payable zinc sold, which includes all mine site cash cloists treatment charges,
ocean freight and other marketing costs, net of by-product credits, was US$0.65 in ZUOBicompared with US$0.39
in 2005 (see non-GAAP reconciliation). The increase was primarily due to unfavourabieimovements in treatment
and marketing costs, 'Ehe foreign exchange rate, Myra Falls direct operating costs pertﬁnne, and pounds

of zinc sold partially offset by higher by-product credits and reduced aggregate direct operating costs at

other operations.

Depreciation and I?epletion
Depreciation and depletion decreased by $4.0 million to $17.6 million primarily due to reduced depreciation

and amortization relatéd to the Bougrine and Bouchard-Hébert mines which were closed in 2005.
|
Reclamation and Closure Costs

Reclamation and closure costs in 2006 were $3.7 million compared with $12.1 million in 3005. These costs
include the accretion of the Company’s estimated future recltamation obligations and adjustments to reclamation
obligations at closed mines where better information has caused the Company to revis(:aI its previous estimates.
In 2005, $8.1 million of Iadjustments were made to the obligations related to the Nanisivik mine as the work
required was significa"ntly mare than originally anticipated.

Other Expenses {Income)
Other expenses {income} in 2006 increased by $3.1 million to $12.9 million. The increase|in other expense (income)
was primarily due to: ihcreased general and administrative and interest and financing expenses; partially offset by
increased investment and other income.

Exploration Expencfiitures
Exploration expenditures in 2006 increased by $7.1 million to $10.0 million compared with $2.9 million in 2005.

These increased expenditures reflect recent successes in target identification and a strategic effort to address
past underinvestment in exploration of the Company’s assets.

i
Other Non-Produci;ng Property (Income} Costs |
Other non-producing property income of $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, ZQOB includes: (i} a gain on
sale of $13.8 million onfdisposal of the Caribou and Restigouche mines on August 1, 200§1t0 Blue Note Metals Inc.
{*Blue Note"}, and, (i) a charge of $1.3 million to settle a claim against the Company by |t(atwea Financial-Corp.,
BVI. Under the terms of the agreement, Blue Note replaced the Company’s reclamation deposit of $5.9 million
and issued to the Comf:uany a $15.0 million unsecured subordinated convertible debenture with a maturity of five

years. The Company w:iII also receive a 1to 2% net smelter return royalty payable quarterly on zinc metal

EXPLORE, INVEST, OPTIMIZE
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BREAKWATER RESOURCES

production provided the average price of 'zinc as determined by the London Metal Exchange is above
US$0.65 per pound.

In addition to the amounts in (i} and {ii} noted above, $2.9 million {2005 - $9.0 million) of care and maintenance
and holding costs were incurred in 2006 and refated to the Caribou, Bougrine and Bouchard-Hébert mines. In
2005, other non-producing property costs|of $9.0 million related to the Bouchard-Hébert, Nanisivik, Caribou,

Bougrine and Langlois mines.

Due to the depletion of mineral reserves, the Company closed the Nanisivik, Bouchard-Hébert and Bougrine mines
in September 2002, February 2005 and September 2005 respectively. Prior to November 2005, the Langlois mine was
on a care and maintenance basis.

Income and Mining Taxes (Recovery! Provision

Income and mining taxes recovery decreased to $1.3 million in 2006 compared with $7.0 million in 2005. The

$5.7 million decrease in income and mining tax recovery in 2006 compared with 2005 was primarily due to
increased tax provisions at El Mochito aqd El Toqui, partially offset by an income tax recovery for Myra Falls.
During the year, the Company determined that the Myra Falls mine would generate future taxable income which
wilt be offset by available loss carry forwards. As a result, the Company set up a future income tax asset of $27.0
million and recorded a corresponding income tax recovery. This determination was based on the Company’s
five-year operating and capital plan and used the forward metal prices. This income tax asset will be drawn
down and charged to income as actual taxable income is earned.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSIT‘ION REVIEW

Working Capital
Working capital at the end of 2006 was $109.8 million compared with $44.4 million at the end of 2005,
an increase of $65.4 million. ' '

Current Assets !
Total current assets increased by $80.5 rr|1illi0n to $197.4 million as at December 31, 2006 compared with
December 31, 2005. The main components of current asset changes were as follows:

* Cash and cash equivalents increas{ed by $62.7 million reflecting improved cash flow generated by stronger
metal prices

» Accounts receivable - concentrate increased by $9.7 million primarily due to a greater volume of production
shipped in late 2006 for which reve'nue was recognized but final payments had not yet been received
compared with December 31, 2005

« The current portion of future income tax assets increased by $8.2 million primarily due to the set up of
a $13.6 million current future income tax asset for the Myra Falls mine {long-term portion $13.4 millicn)
partially offset by a $5.5 million futtljre tax asset drawdown at El Mochito




1
:

Current Liabilities,
Current liabilities increased by $15.1 million to $87.6 million at December 31, 2006 compared with

December 31, 2005. The main components of the current liabilities changes were as fol‘lows:
|

+ Accounts payable increased by $10.3 million primarily due to amounts associated with the ongoing
development at the Langlois mine

« Provisional payments for concentrate inventory shipped and not priced represent.payments received
for concentrate shipments that were not recognized as revenue. The balance as at December 31, 2006 was
$24.2 million. Please refer to the table in Gross Sales Revenue section of this MD&A for additional details.
The December 31, 2005 balance of $14.8 million was for payments for zinc concentrate shipments from
the Myra Falls n?:ne

* Short-term debt decreased by $12.4 million primarily due to the repayment of the gold loan outstanding
at December3l'20[]5

¢ Income and rmnlng taxes payable increased by $9.6 million primarily due to full utilization of loss carry
forwards at El Mochltu and El Toqui mines resulting in tax prowsmns being reqmrled in 2006

i
Reclamation Deposits

At December 31, 2006, the Company had reclamation deposits of $13.5 million, an increalse of $6.7 million from
December 31, 2005. THe increase was primarily due to $13.4 million of reclamation depolcits held under a safe
keeping agreement inisupport of reclamation requirements at Myra Falls entered into inI the first quarter of 2006
partially offset by reimbursement of $5.9 million for reclamation depaosits previously heldlas reclamation
security on the Cariboy and Restigouche mines which were sold in August 2006.

Long-term investments |
At December 31, 2008, long term investments increased by $9.1 million to $14.7 million from $5.6 million at
December 31, 2005. As part of the consideration received on the sale of the Caribou and Restigouche mines on
August 1, 2006, the Company received a convertible debenture in Blue Note in the amou'nt of $15.0 million which
the Company valued at $3.1 million. At Becember 31, 2006 and 2005, also included in Iong term investments was
a $17.0 million convemble debenture of Taseko Mines Limited that is carried at a cost of $5.6 million which was

|

|

the estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. |
3 |

i

[

Restricted Promissory Note

The Company held restricted promissory notes at the end of 2006 and 2005 of $62.3 million. The bhalance consists
of restricted promissory notes related to the Red Mile transactions' in 2004 and 2005. The interest earned and a
portion of the principal‘iof these restricted promissory notes will be used to meet the Ccr|1|1panv’s royalty obligation,

Deferred Income |

Deferred income of $6.3 million at December 31, 2006 consisted of (i} deferred indemnity agreement fees and
prepaid interest income received in relation to the Red Mile transactions in 2004 and 2005 which will be taken
into income over the lives of the two agreements {see note 11 to the 2006 audited ccnsohdated financial
statements) and (i} a an refundable royalty payment received on the sale of the Lapa plgopemes in 2003

{US$1.0 million) which will be taken into revenue as earned when the Lapa properties are put into production.
|

|
Royalty Obligation " Il
The royalty obligation of $62.5 million relates to the royalty amounts received from the 2004 and 2005
Red Mile transactions. |

!
' For further information on the Red Mile transactions, please see the Company’s most recent Annual Report filted on SEDAR or availabfe at
the Company's wehsite at www.breakwater.ca
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l
Total Debt l

Total debt at December 31, 2006 was $2.7
at the end of 2005.

million, a reduction of $17.0 million compared with $19.7 million

In the first and second quarters of 2006, the Company obtained loans of US$1.4 million and US$1.5 million to
restructure certain gold forward and option positions. These loans were repaid in fufl in 2006. In August 2005,
by way of a gold loan, the Company borrofwed US$10.0 million. The gold loan had six scheduled principal
repayments and, in August 2006, the final principal repayment was made. In May 2005, the Company entered
into a concentrate prepayment contract with a customer whereby the Company received US$5.0 million against
future deliveries of zinc concentrate. The: Company elected to repay this concentrate prepayment contract

in May 2006.

Reclamation and Closure Cost Acf.:lrual

Reclamation and closure costs represen{ the Company’s obligation for reclamation and severance costs accrued

for its mine sites. At December 31, 2006, Fotal accrued reclamation and closure costs were $40.6 miflion compared
with $50.3 million at December 31, 2005. Of the $40.6 million, $8.3 million is classified as current and is expected to
be spent over the next 12 months at Nanisivik, Bouchard-Hébert, Bougrine and Myra Falls. The Company incurred
expenditures of $7.4 million in reclamation and closure costs in 2006 compared with $25.2 million in 2005. As there
is no law, regulation or contractin Honduras related to recfamation and closure costs, GAAP does not permit the

Company to set up a liability for reclamatmn at the El Mochito mine.

. Reclamation and Closire Cost:- -~
Accrual at December 31, 2006
i ($ mJHrOns}

Myra falis.
JEL Mactuto
El.Joqui \
Langlms
Bouchard Heben
Nams:\nk )
* Bolgrine I

_——
- = .

Future Income Tax Liabilities
As at December 31, 2006, future tax Iiabillities were $7.1 million, an increase of $5.2 million from December 31, 2605.
The increase in future tax liabilities was primarily due to establishing an additional mining duties liability related to

the Langlois mine. I

Shareholders’ Equity r
Sharehalders’ equity at December 31, 2006 was $308.6 milllon compared with $148.2 million at December 3t, 2005,
an increase of $160.3 million primarily due to net earnings of $156.5 million in 20086.




- ; ) Retained ) Cumulative Total
Shareholders’ Equity . Capital Contributed earnings | transfation shareholders’
{3000's) - : . stock Warrants surplus {deficitt ' adjustments equity

. .
e e —— o
As at December 31, 2005 335512 8,561 3,300 (189,663 i {9,495} 143,215
Reduction of stated capital {169,628) - (3,300} 172928 | - -

Value ascribed to options . )
exercised under stock-hased ) 4

compensatfon : 815 ~- {815) - - -
Employee share option plan - :

proceeds of options exercised 1,538 - - -y - 1,538
Employee share purchase-plan ] 163 - - - - 163
Exercise of warrants . ’ 196 - ! - - — 190
Settlement of hability 848 - - - - 848
Renunciation of flow-through ’ -

share value . . {2,345} - - - - {2.345)
-Stock-based compensation o - - . 1,608 '~ - = 1,608
Net earnings i ' - - .- 186,530 - 156,530
Cumulative transiation adjustments - - - - 1,806 1,808
As at December 31, 2006 . 167,083 8,561 793 139795 . (7.689) 308,553

At the annual and spe'cial meeting held on June 8, 2006, the shareholders approved a special resolution to reduce
the stated capital of tqe Company by an amount of $172.9 million, which was equal to the accumulated deficit as
at December 31, 2005 prior to the change in accounting policy. As a result, capital stock!was reduced by

$169.6 million, cantributed surplus was reduced by $3.3 million and deficit was reduced by $172.9 million.

In 2006, the Company issued the following Common Shares: 2,804,899 following the exerl?ise of employee
share options; 173,823 pursuant to the Company’s employee share purchase plan; 1,000,000 pursuant to
warrants exercised; and, 750,000 in settlement of an outstanding lawsuit.

l
On March 2, 2007, Dundee Corporation {“Dundee”) exercised 15,400,705 warrants to pur(I:hase 15,400,705 Common
Shares at $0.20 per Cqmmon Share. On March 14, 2007, Dundee exercised 15,400,705 warrants to purchase
15,400,705 Common Shares at $0.20 per Common Share.

[
. Capital Expenditures
The Company invested' $75.7 million in mineral properties and fixed assets in 2008,

!
In 2006, the $39.5 million of capital expenditure at Langlots primarily consisted of: develqpment and extraction

of a bulk sample from the Grevet B deposit; drifting to access Zone 97; building and equifnment; and other

underground work pari.iallv offset by preproduction revenues.
i

Myra Falls’ capital expenditures of $16.6 million in 2006 consisted primarily of: surface ramp advances;

underground development; installation of a lead circuit; tailings dam construction; and information systems

and telecommunication system upgrades.

In 2008, the $9.6 millicmj of capital expenditures at €] Mochito consisted primarily of: Sole?ad and Pozo Azul
tailings pond constructlion and upgrades respectively; underground development; and equipment purchases.

'
I
i

EXPLORE, INVEST, OPTIMIZE 15




|
Ei Toqui capital expenditures in 2006 of $é.4 million consisted primarily of: ramp development; Gekko intense
leach reactor construction and installatioln: Concordia deposit development; deferred development; and
capital equipment. {
|
Financial Capability ;
With the existing working capital, the current metal prices and current US$/C$ exchange rate, the Company is
well positioned to carry out its operating! capital, exploration and environmental programs in 2007. The Company’s
financial capability is sensitive to metal |:§rices, smelter treatment charges and the US$/C$ exchange rate.

i
OPERATING REVIEW - YEARS ENI;JED DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

i
gT ) ) - Depreciation, .
EEE A _Contfibution. -+~ . depletion, .. B
’ {loss) from reclamation and - Capital
, Netrevenue = - ‘mining activities™ closure costs expenditures™
{$ mitlions} R 2006 § = 2005+ 2006 2005 - 2006 | 2005 2006 -0 2005 .
Myra Falls - ' ] 1426 191 483 '} 24 104 95 166 178
El Mochito . - 116.6 58,01' 78.4 198 6.4 6.3 , 96 .80 |
Ei Toqui - oo wd e as ] ea [ 51 31 |- 4 84 |7 82 .
Langlois* L 1 joe 00 (A ] S S (1 RY o1 | erd 395 52
Bougrine™ o ) [ 0.0 65 (0.2} 14 02 43 00 | 01
Bouchard-Héhert? A 00 |~ 183 (arg 11T § . 04 L. 13 0o F 03,
Nanisivik® - Lo | 06 w2 ToowEel ez 8s. 00 [ 00
Other ' [ 43 (291 (4.7} {3.5) g4 ' 0B 15 0.0
Total U .+ mea ). 76 1685 | 26§ 212 | 37 57 | %5
{1} After non-cash costs. l {a) First concentrate shipped Novembar 2006,
{2) Net realised from metal hedging activities. {b} Closed September 2005,
{3) Includes assets under capital lease, Ic) Closed February 2008,
| {d} Remediation and clesure on-gaing.
Production Results |
Consolidated production is set forth in the fo‘llowing table.
I . - ; .~ Year ended December 31 Fourth Quarter
All Mines Y S L R
Qre Milled {tonnes} . ' ; 2,003,862 2,468,565 528,237 540,943
Zinc {%} L { 60 1 " 85 : 60 B
Concentrate Prodiction-{tannes)’ T f B O N
Zinc A ; 209,133 268,688 55,856 56,576
Copper ) } 21,866 | -35,361 4,647 71410
" Lead U 1263-F . g2 | 5239 | . . a3
Gold A % azst | e - 1318 1114
Metal in Concentrates o -
Zinc (tonnes) . .. o 07,13 . 141310 | . 28252 . 29521
Copperftonnes) - - 503 |~ gm0 | wer [ 158
Lead {tonnes} ' 775 - 19,196 3,564 257
Silver {ounces) o L 2721676 3059914 | . 698628 | 758,008
Goldfounces): e c e tl b s b 7see of o iagee [ ansm

|
|
\
i
|
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Aggregate production of zinc in concentrate in 2006 was 236.2 million pounds cnmpare:t;i with 311.5 million
pounds in 2005, a 24% reduction. The closure of the Bouchard-Hébert and the Bougrine mines in 2005
accountad for 16% of the reduction with the balance related to lower zinc head g,rades'I at Myra Falls

and El Mochito and lower milled tonnes at Myra Falls, offset by production at Langlois.!

i
“
1

The following table séts forth zinc production at each site for the full year and the fourtlh quarter together

with the change from the prior period.

i

R -
Zinc Praduction {million pounds Year ended December 31 Fourth Guarter !
of zinc contained in concentrate) . -
2006 2005 % 2006 2005 %]
Myra Falls 743 106.0 {30} ;MJ 233 3
El Machito 83.0 94.3 (12} 21 2486 14
El Toqui 700 625 172 ‘116 17.2 2
Langlois® 89 00 - . 84 0.0 -
Bouchard-Hébert™ 0.0 139 - i 0.0 00 -
Bougrine™ 00 35.0 - ; 00 00 -
Total zinc praduction 2362 ns (24) |EL3 65.1 L)) J
:
{a) First concentrate shipped November 2006. i
{b) Ctosed February 2005. !
{c) Closed September 2005. ; II
Production of copper in concentrate decreased 37% in 2006 from the same period in 209? due to lower
milled tonnes and lower copper grades at Myra Falls as well as the closure of the Bouchard-Hébert mine
in February 2005. .
1
Copper Production {million pounds Year ended December 31 Fourth Quarter
of copper contained in concentrate)
2006 2005 % 2006 2005 %
Myra Falls 0.8 16.8 (36} * 18 17 {s1)
Langlois™ 05 00 - 10'5 0.0 ~
8ouchard-Hébert® 0.0 11 - 10.0 0.0 -
Total copper production 1.3 179 {n 23 37 (38)
{a) First concentrate shipped November 2006, ‘
{b} Ctosed February 2005, .
)
H 1
Despite higher lead praduction at El Mochito, production of lead in concentrate for 2006/decreased 39% year-
. . 1
over-year due to the closure of Bougrine in September 2005. ;
Lead Production {million pounds Year ended December 31 Fourth Quarter
of fead contained in concentrate}
20086 2005 % 2006 2005 %
El Mochito 26.0 231 13 7.9 5.7 39
Bougring" 0.0 19.2 - IO.D 0.0 -
Total lead production 2.0 423 (39) 79 57 39

{a} Closed September 2005

I . | :
Silver in concentrate decreased 11% year-over-year due to lower tonnes milled and lower silver grades from Myra
Falts and lower silver production at El Toqui as well as the closure of the Bouchard-Hébeit mine in February 2005.

EXPLORE,

|
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i
Silver Production (ounces of N Year ended December 31 " Fourth Quarter
silver contained in concentrate) - S ) T

— o 2006 3005 % 2006 2005 %
Myra Falls ; 852,775 | 1,165,056 . {26) 172,10 286,554 ’ (40)
El Mochito . 1,769,456 | 1,723,825 3 482,221 446,445 B
El Toqui 71,703 131,020 {45} 20,802 25,009 (7
Langlois™ , 22,855 0o - 22,855 0 -
Bouchard-Hébert® : 0 | 4003 - 0 0 -
Total silver production i 2,721,789 { 3,059,914 (1) 638,585 758,008 (8

{a) First concentrate shipped November 2006.
{b} Closed February 2005.

Gold in concentrate decreased 25% in 2[1[06 from the same period in 2005 due to lower milled tonnes at Myra Falls
and less gold production from El Toqui as well as the closure of the Bouchard-Hébert mine in February 2005.

Gold Production {ounces of ‘ { . Yoar ended December 31 Y Fourth Quarter
gold contained in concentrate} —

_ 2006_[ 2005 % 2006 2005 %
Myra Falls . : ; 20231 N, 744 (35) 3454 . 8254 | (58)
£l Toqui ' 36,79 | 41,605 {12} 9,810 9,267 6
Langlais® i 205 0 - 205 0 -
Bouchard-Hébert™ ; 0 | . 264 . - t ¢ -
Total gold production o 51.231 75,993 {25} 13,469 11521 {23)

(a} First concentrate shipped November 2006. [
(b} Closed February 2005. |

Myra Falls Production
The following table sets forth Myra Fallsl’ production for the periods presented.

L o Year ended December 31 " Fourfh Quarter |

. 2006 2005 2006 | 2005
Ore Milled (tonnes) . t 714,443 912,656 166,188 226,962
Zinc (%) § - 55 ’ 6.1 46 5.5
Copper (%) 09 1.2 0.7 1.0
Silver {g/t} ‘ 48 S 51 4 50
Gold {g/t) - 1.5 8 1.2 .. 20
Concentrate Preduction
Zinc {tonnes} ‘ 64,902 90,129 12850 § - 19,984
Recovery {%) _ . 865 86.3 83.2 84.4
Grade (%} g 519 - 634 51.2 . 83.2
Copper {tonnes} . 20,788 32,333 3,569 7410
Recovery (%} | 730 69.6 70.9 ns
Grade (%} | . 235 236 29 28
Gold {tonnes) ’ : 1 . ur - 14 39
Recovery {%} ‘ ns | - 183 98 15.2
Grade (g/t) . 9,489 8,741 32,714 6,830
Metal in Concentrates : 7 : .
Zing {tornes) ; 33708 . 48,084 6,651 10,591
Copper (tonnes) . 4,885 7,640 819 1,698
Silver {ounces} : 851,775 1,165,056 172,701 286,554
Gold (ounces} " 20,231 oM 3,454 8,254
Total Cash Costs (US$) i : ’ ’
Per Ib. payable zinc soid (USS$) 0.8t 047 1.44 0.52

LTD.

|
[
|
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Zinc head grades we're-lower in 2006 from the same period in 2005 due to increased mining in the lower
grade HW Zone. Milled tonnage decreased during 2006 compared with 2005. Productmn was hindered
during the year due to the lack of working areas underground, delays in improving the Battle -Gap

underground infrastructure and problems with underground equipment availability. Adl?ltronallv ventilation
requirements in the western extensions of the mine slowed production improvements.| The ventilation raise
connecting the surface ramp to the underground operation was completed in January‘ 2007. The mill
upgrades are on schedule and on budget. The new copper and zinc circuits have been commissioned
resulting in lmproved[recoverles and a reduction in the penaity elements in the enpper| concentrate.

During the fourth qua'rter operations at Myra Falls were suspended for a 10 day periodidue to damage to the
bridge over Thelwood Creek on the road leading to Myra Falis, which necessitated the temporary closure of
this bridge to vehlcular traffic. The damage to the bridge was sustained during a one in 200 year storm event
on Vancouver Island Ec:n November 15th. Installation of a temporary bridge was complet‘ed on November 24th
and normal operatinnfs resumed the following day.

Myra Falls Ouﬂoofk

While the issue of ventilation has largely been addressed, production will be constrained by the number of |
available working facfes and the haulage distances underground. The track developmelr:n out to the Marshall
zone for explaration efontinues on the 24 level. Underground diamond drilling is schedu‘l'ed during the first helf
of 2007 in this area. Current drilling is focused on the Marmot Trough, a drill target developed last year following
a reinterpretation of certaln drill holes completed in the 1990°s. The significance of the Marmot Trough as a target
is that it is directly below current mine workings and, in the event of significant mlnerallzatlon is accessible from

the current mihe mfralstructure
b

Diamond drilling fromithe surface ramp commenced during 2006. The diamond drill contractor mobilized in
the fourth quarter and set up on surface to drill the extension of the Marshall zone.

Ew
El Mochito Produr%tian
The following table sets forth El Mochita's praduction for the periods presented.

"2 Year ended Deeem‘ber:ﬂ .0 Fourth Quarter - .
. ; - s | - — 2005_"1' T 2006 |0 ... 2005 .
‘Ore Milled (tonnes) 690,243 | "¢ 700180 ¢ - am3e9 [ 185597
 Zine (%) s . * RV I SRR - P $2 47, ~B5
v Lead [).; T e P AN RS I I 26 e .. L0
Sllver(g/t) ) ‘ @ o Ter | 01 |y 88
Cuncentrate Pmductmn: o : IR | SR
Zinc (tonrigs) ., ST [ - M8 | c1s7 | 21142
_ Recoverv(%l_ﬁ g 904 | ey | - seg [ L eze.
. Grade{%) . .7 520 S B2 1. 512 ‘( 528
Lead {tonries) .74 17263 {0 0015329 1 . 5239 |0 34
‘ Recevery!%) i 1 XY RN X R SRR K A VAR 1
Grade (%) . Coes2 0 —534" ‘ 680 [ ’.'BB.B'
Metal in Concentrates i ' T G- e .
Zing {tonnes) 3R | 42593‘ ST R FRRRTAT
“Lead (topres)- .. .. 1775 {2 10488 3564 | 7 2579
_ snver{uunces) IS 4,769,456 | 1_72332_5 I SR 1 B S 46445
TotaICash CostsiUS$) O . i _ : Tf .
Per Y payab!e e so'.d_‘ B 7043 BT 1 . 082o ] 020 .
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I
Zinc head grades were slightly lower in 2006 from 2005 due to the recovery of mineral reserves in the lower grade
skarn areas such as Salva Vida and La Le:ona which are economic at current metai prices.

[
El Mochito Outlook |

During 2006, the Company continued to ex:plore, develop and delineate new mineral resources and reserves

along extensions of the productive Salva Vida and Santo Nifio trends. Drilling also continued on the Barbasco
trend which continues to show a pnssible['connection with the Imperial zone to the north. During the fourth
quarter, the Company initiated exploration between Santo Nifio and the manto of Yojoa Norte. Results to date show
the presence of low grade skarn and a po:ssible connection between the two trends. Exploration and delineation
drilling of the La Leana deposit also continued to show promising results with increases expected in resources
and reserves in this area. |

During 2006, the Company continued its surface exploration program at El Mochito. The Company acquired a larger
diamond drill capable of drilling deeper ta!rgets. This drill was initially set up to deepen existing holes at Caliche in
order to investigate below the Mochito shales. Geological mapping completed in 2006 to the east on the Big Fuzzy
target and to the west over the Santa Bar:hara mountain or Arandanas anomaly will be drill tested in 2007 and
reported on later in the year. As weil, geo!ogical mapping carried out over two new targets, ML2 and ML3, will be
investigated in 2007 by surface diamond drilling. These target areas are located at the projected intersections of

fault zones located to the north of the current underground workings.

During 2006, the Company experienced a delay in commissioning the new tailings facility Soledad. Storm damage
necessitated a repair to the geomembrane liner which delayed commissioning of Sotedad into 2007. Soledad is
scheduled to be commissioned in the third quarter of 2007. Once complete, Soledad is expected to have capacity
for seven years at current production rau[es and the current tailings impoundment facility, Pozo Azul, will be
reclaimed.

E! Toqui Production :
The following table sets forth El Toqui's production for the periods presented.

T -Year ended December 31 .- %" Fourth-Quarter . J
: o 006 {:;. 2005 - 2006 2005
Ore Milled {tonnes) Lo 539,803 519,963 131,307 128,390
Zinc (%) : { 65 6.0 66 66
Gold {g/t) ; 24 | 29 27 26
Concentrate Production | :

Zinc {tonnes} T 63617 | .-~ 56552 16,979 15,450
Recovery (%) B 910 1 90.4 918 508 |
Grade (%) f a9 - 803 493 504 -

Gold (tonnes) 4237 | 4,110 1,315 1,104 .
Recovery (%) . : 68.5 51.4 66.3 498
Grade {g/t) : ' 1923 2217 160.5 1814

Metal in Concentrates .

Zinc {tonnes) ; 3175 | - 28347 7,966 7,785

Silver (ounces) Y nws | 131,020 20,802 25,003

Gold (ounces) R 36,795 g 41,605 9,810 9,267

Total Cash Costs {USS) L i ‘ : L

Per |b. payabie zinc sold 063 |- 044 " 089 : 029
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1] I
The milled tonnage at El Toqui increased in 2006 compared with the same period in 2005 due to a higher
number of available \.tvurking areas at the Estatuas and Dofia Rosa deposits. The decrease in gold head

grade during 2006 is due to a decision to stockpile Aserradero material until commissioning of the Gekko
intense leach reactor commences during the first quarter of 2007. The Aserradero deposit has high gold

grades with the mill p'lroducing a gold concentrate as well as a zinc concentrate,

|
El Toqui Outlook | |

During 20086, ramp de?elopment to access the Concordia deposit continued with a total

of 566 metres of

development completed to the end of the year. The Concordia depasit is on schedule \nl.rith production expected

by mid-2007. : |

During 2007, drilling will continue on the Porvenir deposit to increase the inferred resou

rces, which currently

|
stand at 1.6 million tonnes of 9.62% Zn and 0.34 g/t Au and to attempt to delineate the oztljtlme of the deposit which
is currently open to the north-west and south-east. Altazor, Terrunyo and Melchor will be the main targets for

exploration at El Toquil in 2007.

If the exploration programs are successful in increasing the mineral reserves and resources at El Toqui, the

. | - . . . . |
Company will conduct a feasibility study to determine the optimal size and location of a
production throughput.

Langlois Production

! .
mill to increase

Langlois, which is snuated in north-western Québec approximately 213 kilometres north, of Val-d'Or, is currently

being developed to reach commercial production in mid-2007.

Y | . )
Development drifts are currently being driven between Zone 3, Zone 4 and Zane 97 to thF east on Levels

4,9 and 13. Production has commenced in Zones 3 and 4 with a tota! of 59,374 tonnes m

quarter of 2006. 1
|

illed during the fourth

During the fourth quarter of 2006, excavation of the bulk sample was carried out on the Grevet B deposit, located
three kilometres south-east of the Langleis mine. The bulk sample was milled in the firsthuarter of 2007 and

gave positive metallurg’;ical results. The results of the Grevet B bulk sample have proven|successful, therefore

processing at Langlois mill is expected to increase during 2007 and 2008.

The Company currenth? has five diamond drills operating on the property on surface, thr
two focused on the upper portion of Zone 97 for definition drilling.

l Year and Quarter ended December 31, 2006 ]
Ore Milled {tonnes) 59,373
Zinc (%) . 8.3
Copper {%} T o 05
Sitver {g/t) ‘ 4
Gold {g/t) : 0.3
Concentrate Production
Zing {tonnes) ’ 8,201
Recovery (%) 822
Grade (%) 435
Copper {tonnes) 1,078
Recovery {%) | a 2.1
Grade {%]) ‘ 19.3
Metal in Concentrates
Zinc (tonnes} 4,057
Copper {tonnes) : 208
Silver {ounces) i ‘ 22,855
Gold (ountées] : " 205
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Langlois Outlook :
During the fourth quarter of 2006, a diamond drill program commenced to investigate the upper portions of
Zones 4 between the current mining areas and surface. As of the beginning of March 2007, 32 holes totalling
6,200 metres have been drilled. All 32 holels intersected semi to massive sulphide zones. Based on this drilling,
the Company is planning & ramp from surche which will be able to access these zones for mining and will
eventually connect with the current undeﬁground workings at Langlois, thus facilitating the movement of
equipment, material and manpower between surface and the mine.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, Metco Resources Inc. announced that a pre-feasibility study will be conducted
during the first half of 2007 on the Orphée|Deposit {50% the Company, 50% Metco Resources Inc.}. The Orphée
deposit is located only six kilometres away from the Langlois mill. Should the results of the pre-feasibility be
positive, then the Orphée deposit coutd become a source of additional mill feed for Langlois, which currently
has excess mill capacity.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company completed an airborne Megatem geophysical survey over the
Langlois property. The survey identified several anomalies in the immediate area surrounding the Langlois mine,
both on the existing land package as weII as open ground. The Company has acquired additional claims totalling
4,000 hectares which cover the anomalles and is in the process of investigating them with ground geophysical
surveys and diamond drilling. !

Virginia Mines Inc. - Coulon Pro;ec't

On May 8, 2006, the Company announced the signing of an agreement with Virginia Mines Inc. {*Virginia”)

on the Coulon project, located in the James Bay region of the Province of Québec. In accordance with the
agreement, the Company has the option tio acquire a 50% interest in the Coulon property in return for $6.5 million
in exploration expenditures and cash payments totalling $180,000 over an 8-year period. Virginia will be the
operator until the completien of a positivé pre-feasibility study. The Coulon project, located 15 kilometres from
the Fontanges airport, lies in an unexplored volcanic belt and is characterized by a geological assemblage typical
of belts hosting volcanagenic, massive-sulphide deposits that have made north western Québec and north
eastern Ontario ane of the world’s richest regions of palymetallic deposits.

The Coulon project is the host to polvmetalllc massive-sulphide lenses, which returned values of up to 15.39% Zn,
3.12% Pb, 117 g/t Ag and 0.46% Cu over 10 5 metres {lens 16-17), on the Dom zone, 2.91% Zn, 1.12% Cu, 34.25 g/t Ag
and 0.3 g/t Au over 21.8 metres {lens 9- 25) and 12.65% Zn, 1.36% Cu, 1.54% Pb,125 g/t Ag and 0.3 g/t Au over 4.70
metres {lens 08).

The exploration program carried out during the summer and fall of 2006 led to the discovery of two new

important polymetallic lenses {lenses 43 |and 44), bringing the total of known lenses to five, and confirmed the
vertical continuity of lens 9-25 to a depth of 365 metres. Furthermore, this recent work brought to light many new
priority drill targets on the property. The Company is very encouraged by the results of the 20606 campaign. All
these lenses remain open and the potentlal to increase their tonnage is excellent. Many ather priority targets were
also defined within this fertile volcanic belt that now presents mineralized showings and alteration along a lateral
distance of over 20 kilometres. Virginia ;;Ians to begin a new campaign composed of geophysical surveying and
diamend drilfing during the first quarter of 2007 and mobilization of a second drill rig on the project in order to
accelerate the exploration work. |

Other Properties

The reclamation work is largely complete at the Bouchard-Hébert, Bougrine and Nanisivik properties, with
Nanisivik to be fully reclaimed in 2007. T;he mills at Bouchard-Hébert and Bougrine remain intact pending
exploration results in the immediate vicinity or elsewhere throughout the Company’s properties.

|
|
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FOURTH uunmep REVIEW

The Company realized net earnings in the fourth quarter of 2006 of $50.4 million compared with $9.3 million
in the same period in]2005.

|
In the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2008, gross sales revenue increased by $101.0 million to $158.3 million
primarily due to 5|gn|f|cantly higher zinc and other metal prices and a 21% increase in tonnes of concentrate sold
partially offset by a stronger Canadian dollar.

Treatment and marketmg costs increased by 173% in the fourth quarter of 2006 to $657 per tonne of concentrate
sold compared with $292 per tonne in the same period in 2005. Higher metal prices in the fourth quarter of 2006
triggered treatment clharge escalators which significantly increased aggreqate treatment costs. Direct operating
costs were higher in 2006 at $501 per tonne of concentrate sold compared with $406 pé'r tonne in 2005.

i

Operating review for ’ Depraciation,
the tourth quarter ) © Gontrihution degpletion H
ended Decemher 31 . ' ’ {loss} from mining reclamaﬁpn and Capital H
(8 miliions) Net revenue activities™ closure costs expenditures® !
. .' . . /
o | 2008 | 2005 2005 2005 2006 | 2005 2006 2005 1,1
= ¥
Myra Falls , , 306 125 95 06 3] . 14 13 57 |
ElMochito -~ - - ) : 473 149 35 6.8 204 ¢ 20 22 21
El Toqui , 323 104 32 34 4 08 12 7
Bougrine - o oo 00 42 0.0 1.9 00 , 04 0.0 0.0
Bouchard-Hébert - . - 0.0 0.0 f0.1) 03 01 [ - (03) 00 0.0
Nanisivik o 0.0 0.0 {0.1) 0.1} o | oo 0.0 00
Langlois U S 1 00 09 09 6o | ; oo | 204 08 |
Other i ] 51 23 | e | (26 02 | © 02 0.2 0o f
Total . 103 397 66.4 103 12| 48 | 29 98 |

(1) After non-cash costs. E
(2} Net realised from metal hedgmg activities.
{3) Includes assets under capital laase.

f
|

Other expense (mcume) in the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased by $0.9 million to $3.3 mllllon primarily due to an
increase in mvestment and other income and a decrease in loss on gold loan partially of'fset by increased general
and administrative costs and other foreign exchange loss. Investment and other i income mcreased by $3.1 million

in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared with the same period in 2005 primarily due to additional interest and indemnity

fee incame assoc:ated{wnth the 2005 Red Mile transaction, mare interest earned on hlghier cash balances and

gainsg on the sale of ce(tain short-term investments. The gold loan was repaid in 2006 an'li therefare the loss on
gold loan in the fourth quarter of 2005 did not recur. General and administrative costs wctaire higher by $0.7 million
in the fourth quarter of 2006 primarily due to higher consulting fees associated with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
and corporate development activities and higher capital tax accruals partially offset by tl:ertain stock-based
compensation costs which were allocated to the mines in the fourth quarter of 2006. Oth?r foreign exchange
loss increased by $1.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 campared with the fourth quarter of 2005 primarily

due to the impact of fofeign exchange rate movements on significantly higher US dollar cash positions in 2006.

Exploration expenditurés in the tourth quarter of 2006 increased by $1.8 million primarily due to increased
expenditures at El Toqui and Myra Falls compared with the same period in 2005.
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Other non-producing property (income) costs decreased by $1.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared
with the same period in 2005 primarily due to reduced costs at Bougrine and the impact of the disposal of the
Caribou and Restigouche mines in 2006. I

Income tax provisions increased by $15.5 Imillion in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared with 2005 due to higher
tax provisions at El Mochito and El Toqui partially offset by an income tax recovery at Myra Falls. The El Mochito
and El Toqui tax provisions ingreased by $18 7 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 because future tax assets
established for these mines in the fourth quarter of 2005 did not recur and both mines became taxable in 2006
resulting in tax provisions being established. The increase in income tax recovery at Myra Falls was due to

the establishment of a future tax asset fml' that operation in 2006.

NON-GAAP RECONCILIATIONS |

Total cash costs per pound of payable zin!c sold is furiished to provide additional information and is a
non-GAAP measure. This measure shoulq not be considered in isclation as a substitute for measures of
performance prepared in accordance with GAAP and is not necessarily indicative of cash provided from
operating activities or operating expense:s as determined under GAAP. This measure is intended to provide
investors with information about the casl? generating capabilities of the Company's operating activities in a
given period which is the same purpose that the Company uses this informatian. This MD&A and the 2006
audited consolidated financial statements discuss the components not included in this non-GAAP measure.

Non-GAAP reconciliation of total cash cusl per pound ni‘ -~ - . ]
payable zinc sold to consolidated fi nanclal statements ~ B - 2006 ©2005
___.__v___.-——'——-m—'———“—""'—"_-._-ﬂ s
By-product credit {$ millions) vl . : , _
Gross sales revenue per financial statements ' {452.2} ‘ {313.0)
Less zinc sales revenue__ IR . o 313 [ - 1897
. , _ (tog) | - (1233}
Treatments and marketing charges {$ rniIIil.fms} per financial statements - 1218 | 1054 .
Dirgct operating costs {$ millions) per financial statements : - ‘ 1346 | 1443
Total cash costs - Canadian (§ mllimns) I T C 1515 | 1264
Exchange rate CH/USS - - o 1.1330 1.2111
Total cash-costs - US$ ($ millions) z ) . _ 133.7 1046
Zinc pounds sold (millions} b - R | 2070 | - 2653
Total cash cost per pound of payable zinc :sold {USs) ‘
By-product credit ©l P e . - 04n ] - (0.3?!
Treatment and marketing costs ' 0.55 0.33
Direct operating costs | ' 057 | 045
Total 0.65 039

|
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i
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SUMMARY OF OUAHTERLY RESULTS

|

; - 2005 { 2006 ‘,

: {restated-508 note 2) b

[ e /= ;
‘ o Qi az 03 04 a1, 0z 03 04
i . "

A > - ki -

Gross sales ravenue ($ millions) 91.3 924 8 574 80.'{| “101.2 120 - 158.3.
Net earning {loss) ($ millions} 38 21 (1.2} 9.3 38.3, 28.6 392 50.4
Basic garnings per share $0.01 $0.01 $0.00 $0.02 so.1q % $0.08 $0.10 %013

Weighted-average number of : i

Common Shares outstanding (millions) 365.7 3674 369.5 2 w0l a3 384.3 3850
Biluted earnings per share $0.01 $0.01. $0.00 $0.02 $0.09l $0.07 $0.09 s0.42

C$/USS realiz'_ed exchamje rats 12274 1.2429 12019 11744 1.1559{ 11238 1.1187 11422
Average realized zinc price (US$/t) 1,256 1,252 1,296 1,502 2220 2,895 3,363 4,221
Average realized zinc price {CH/t) 1,542 1,556 1,558 1,764 2,567,{ 3228 3,762 4,828

Concentrate tonnes sold 108012 118022 80205  60.3% 73551 5977¢ 61383 13230
‘Concentrate F’onnas produced 103,259 88,782 76,0114 68,841 66,129 ‘ 59,906 59,420 67,058

The quantity and mix of concentrates sald directly affects gross sales revenue. The reqll)gnition of revenue from
the sale of concentrate can vary from quarter to quarter for the reasons discussed in t||1le “Gross Sales Revenue”
section of this MD&A. As all sales are based in US dollars, the US dollar's general weakening against the Canadian

dollar over the past eight quarters has reduced the realized Canadian dollar gross sale'ls revenue.

1
|
i
t

I
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations , - Payments Due by Period - :
(8 mitlions) S - ' f 1
<1year »1-3 yaars 4-5 years >5 vérs Tota!
Capital Leases " 545 567 - , - 1112
Qperating Leasas ™ 1,445 3 - 2,270
Debt . B 2,169 - - - 2,169
Employee future benefits' ‘. 1,130 4,092 1,743 . 38125 45,090
Reclamation ' 8,267 4597 3,803 23,793 40,560
Royalty obligations™ Co- - - 62479 62,479
Total . iy 12,902 10,701 5580 ., 126397 153,680

- "
{a) Employee future benefits and royalty obligations have funding sources from pension plan assets ($32.8 million} and restricted promissory notes
{$62.3 million} respactively. Ses financial statements for additional details.

|

t
CRITICAL ACCOUNITING ESTIMATES

. t
Asset Impairment !

The carrying values of‘producing mineral preperties, including properties placedonac

altire and maintenance basis

and related deferred expenditures, are reviewed when events or changes in circumstanFes arise that may result in
}Jndiscounted basis, are
calculated for each pn?pertv using: estimated recoverable reserves; estimated future metat price realization

impairments in the carrying value of those assets. Estimated future net cash flow, on an

!
|
|
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(considering historical and current prices, price trends and related factors); and estimated operating, capital and
other cash flow. Estimates of future cash ﬂow are subject to risks and uncertainties. It is possible that changes
could occur which may affect the recove;rability of the carrying value of mineral properties. No write-downs were

required in 2006 or 2005. I
l

Reserves Il _

Every year the Company estimates its proven and probable mineral reserves {the "Reserves”} in accordance with
National Instrument 43-101 {“NI 43-101"}, ;a rule adopted by Canadian securities administrators as the standard of
disclosure for mineral projects. This estimate is used to determine mine viability, mine life and amortization rates.
The estimation of Reserves is based on drill hole information, historical mining results, historical metallurgical
results, estimated future operating costs and estimated future metal prices. A “Qualified Person”, as defined by
NI 43-101, performs the Reserves estlmate As all of the Company's operations have had significant operating
history, the factor that could have the greatest impact on the Reserves estimate is future metal prices.

Amortization

The Company uses the units-of-production method for amortization of mineral properties and somae of its
fixed assets based on the Reserves. Any lsignificant changes in the Reserves could impact the amount of
annual amortization, |

Inventory

The Company values its concentrate inventories at the lower of cost or realizable value at the end of the reporting
period. Costs represent the average costi and include direct labour and materials costs, mine site overhead and
depreciation and amortization. Realizable: value includes metal prices, net of treatment charges and freight.

Metal prices can be subject to signiﬁcan‘t change from pericd to period. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, all

concentrate inventories were recorded at cost.

Future Tax Assets and Liabilities

Future tax assets and liabilities are calcullated using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and

liability method, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using current tax rates. The effect on future tax assets
and liabilities of a'change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period the change is known. To the extent
that the Company considers it to be moreja likely than not that a future tax asset will be recovered, a tax asset will
be set up, otherwise the Company provides a valuation allowance against the excess. It is possible that changes
could occur in the future that may affect the recoverability of the carrying value of future tax assets and a
write-down may be required. ‘

Reclamation

The Company provides far the fair vatue I01‘ liahilities and capitalized costs for asset retirement obligations in the
period in which they are incurred. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value and the capitalized cost is
amortized over the useful life of the related asset. Asset retirement obligations are obligations of the Company that
arise as a result of an existing law, regulation or contract related to asset retirements. Estimates of the liability
associated with the retirement of an asset are based on current laws and regulations and the expected resulting
costs, all of which are subject to change If actual costs of reclamation exceed the recorded amount the Company
will record a loss. Alternatively, if reclamation costs incurred are less than those recorded, the Company will
record a gain. Currently the Company is not able to set up a liability for reclamation at El Mochito as there is

no law, regulation or contract related to ithis asset’s retirement.

|
|
|
|
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RISKS, UNCERTAI!\ITIES AND OTHER INFORMATION

Readers are encouraged to read and consider the risk factors, and additional informati?n regarding the
Company, included in;its most recent Annual Report and Form 40-F/Annual Information Form filed with the

Canadian securities regulators and the United States Securities and Exchange Commission {the "SEC"), as
applicable, a copy of \:Nhich is posted on the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com and/or the SEC's website
at www.sec.gov.

i
)

1

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA AND FULL DILUTION CALCULATION

The Company is authérized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares and 200,000,000 preferred shares,
issueable in series. Tﬁere are no preferred shares outstanding. Each Common Share entitles the holder of record
thereof to ane vote at -all meetings of shareholders of the Company, except at meetmgsuat which only helders of
another class or senes of shares of the Company are entitled to vote. The table set fonh below summarizes the
Capital Stock. For a m_ore complete description of certain etements please refer to note]14 to the consolidated
financial statements Qf the Company.

Common Shares or Securities Convertible into Common Shares March 21, 2007

Issued and outstandlng ) f 417,150,735
Share optmns outstandmg we:ghted average exercise price SOBB ‘ ) T . 9,355,636
Warrants granted at $1 00 expire January 28, 2009 - traded on TSX | ' RS 33571429

Future fully’ diluted +,wr R L R 3t g 460,077,800 |

LT . - - - S I

[
!

CONCLUSION RELATING Tb DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

!
An evaluation was performed under the supervision of and with the participation of management, including

the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's
disclosure cantrols and procedures as defined in the Muftilateral Instrument 52-109. Ba’sed on that evaluation,
the President and Chlef Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer conciuded thalt‘ the design and operation
of the Company’s dlsclosure controts and procedures were effective as at December 31, 2006.

CAUTION ON FORWARD-I.DOKlNG INFORMATION

This report contains c;ertain statements which constitute forward-looking information. These forward-looking
statements are not descriptive of historical matters and may refer to management's expectations or plans.

These statements include but are not limited to statements concerning the Company’s business objectives

and plans; future trends in the Company’s industry; future production costs and volumes; mineral grades, reserve
and resource estlmates and types; sales volumes and realized prices; capital spendmg‘p!ans exploration plans;
expansion plans; expected market fundamentals and prices; avaitabitity of equipment and supplies; expected plant
availability; success oj process changes; the Company's processing technologies; global economic growth and
industrial demand; production of base metal concentrates by the Company's operations; future metal prices and
treatment charges; future royalties payable; changes in global metal and concentrate inventories; currency
exchange rates; costs of energy, materials and supplies; the outcome of disputes and iegal proceedings in

which the Company is involved; future effective tax rates; and future benefits casts.

i
!

‘;
i
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Inherent in forward-looking statements are risks and uncertainties beyond the Company's ability to predict

or control, including risks that may affect the Company's operating or capital plans, including risks generally
encountered in the development and ope}ratien of mineral properties and processing facilities such as unusual

or unexpected geological formations, unanticipated metallurgical difficulties, ground control problems, process
upsets and equipment malfunctions; risksI associated with labour disturbances and unavailability of skilled labour;
fluctuations in the market prices of the Company’s principal products, which are cyclical and subject to substantial
price fluctuations; risks creatad through competition for mining properties; risks associated with lack of access
to markets; risks associated with mineral{and resource estimates, including the risk of errors in assumptions or
methodologies; risks posed by fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates, as well as general economic
conditions; risks associated with environmental compliance and permitting, including those created by changes
in environmental legislation and regulatioln' risks associated with the Company's dependence on third parties in
the provision of transportation and other crltncal services, risks associated with aboriginal title claims and other
title risks; social and political risks assomated with operations in foreign countries; and risks associated with

legal proceedings.

Actual results and developments are Iikel:y to differ, and may differ materially, from those expressed or implied by
the forward-logking statements contained in this MD&A. Such statements are based on a number of assumptions
which may prove to be incorrect, includin'g but not limited to, the following assumptions: that there is no material
deterioration in general business and econom:c conditions; that there is no unanticipated fluctuation of interest
rates and foreign exchange rates; that the supply and demand for, deliveries of, and the level and volatility of
prices of zinc, copper, gold, lead and sﬁver and the Company’s other primary metals and minerals develop as
expected; that the Company receives regulatory and gavernmental approvals for its development projects and
other operations on a timely basis; that the Company is able to obtain financing for its development projects on
reasonabie terms; that there is no unforeseen deterioration in the Company's costs of production or production
and productivity levels; that the Company is able to continue to secure adequate transportation for its products;
that the Company is able to procure mmmg equipment and operating supplies (mcludmg tires} in sufficient
quantities and on a timely basis; that englneenng and construction timetables and capital costs for the Company’s
development and expansion projects are not incorrectly estimated or affected by unforeseen circumstances; that
costs of closure of various operations are accurately estimated; that there are no unanticipated changes to market
competition; that the Company's reserve estimates are within reasonable bounds of accuracy (including with
respect to size, grade and recoverability)|and that the geological, operational and price assumptions on which
these are based are reasonable; that envlironmental and other proceedings or disputes are satisfactorily

resolved; and that the Company maintains its ongaing relations with its employees and with its business

partners and joint venturers.

Readers are cautioned that the foregaoing list of important factors and assumptions is not exhaustive.
Forward-looking statements are not guaréntees of future performance. Events or circumstances could cause
the Company's actual results to differ maierially from those estimated or projected and expressed in, or implied
by, these forward-looking statements. Re:aders shoutd also carefully consider the matters discussed under “Risk
Factors” in the Company’s Annual Information Form. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly
or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements or the foregoing list of factors, whether as a result of new
information or future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable laws.

|
|
F
|
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Managenient’s Responsibility
for Financial Reporting

'

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Breakwater Resources Ltd. {the "Company”) and all of the information
contained in the Annual Repaort are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

§

The consolidated financ!ial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (“Cdn. GAAP"). When alternative accounting methods exist, management has chosen those it deems most
appropriate in the circumstances. Financial statements are not precise since they include certain amuunts based on estimates and
judgments. Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. Management has prepared the financial mformatlon presented elsewhere
in the Annual Report anc] has ensured that it is consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

i

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting and administrative controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and that the Campany's assets are appropriately accounted for
and adequately safeguarded. This system of internal control includes an organizational arrangement with clearly defined lines

of responsibility. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, the independent auditors appointed by the shareholders to audit the consolidated
financial statements, haye full and unrestricted access to the Audit Committee. During the course of their audit,

. ! . , . I
PricewaterhauseCoopers LLP reviewed the Company's system of internal control to the extent necessary to render

their opinion on the consolidated financial statements. |

"
The Audit Committee is appointed by the Company'’s Board of Directors and all its members are outlside directors. The Audit
Committee meets periodically with management, as well as the independent auditors to discuss intﬁrnal controls over the financial
reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to satisfy itself that each party is properly discharging its
responsibilities and to réview the consolidated financial statements and the independent auditors’ rfaport. The Company's Audit
Committee reports its fin:dings to the Company's Board of Directors for consideration when approving the consolidated financial
statements for issuance"m shareholders. The Company's Audit Committee also considers, for review by the Company's Board
of Directors and the approval by the shareholders, the engagement or reappointment of independent auditors.

The consclidated financial statements as at December 31, 2006 and for the year then ended have bﬁen audited by
PricewaterhouseCooperts LLP, the independent auditors, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards

on behalf of the sharehuiders.

The consolidated fmancral statements as at December 31, 2005 and for the years ended December |31 2005 and 2004 were audited
by other auditors, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) on behalf of the shareholders. The other auditors had full and free access to the Audit Committee,

MANAGEMENT'S::REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is respunslible for establishing and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting. Management conducted |
an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based en “Internal Control - Integrated Framework" !
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, managemem
concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as at Decembér 31, 2006.

- |

George E. Pirie , David C. Langille

'
President and ; Vice President, Finance

Chief Executive foicbr and Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Breakwater Resources Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Breakwater Resources Ltd. as at December 31, 2006 and the consolidated
statements of operations and retained earning}s {deficit} and cash flow for the year then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perfarm an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accountingprinciples.

The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, prior

to the adjustment for the change in accwntiné policy for exploration expenditures as described in Note 2, were audited by
other auditors who expressed an opinion withgut reservation on those consolidated financial statements in their report dated
March 2, 2006. We have audited the adjustments to the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements and in our opinion, .

such adjustments, in all material respects, are appropriate and have been properly applied.

WM&@W LR
Chartered Accountants

Toronto, Canada
March 21, 2007

Comments by Auditor for US Readers on Canada-US Reporting Differences

In the United States, reporting standards for ayditurs require the addition of an explanatory paragraph {following the opinion
paragraph) when there is'a change in accounting principles that has a material effect on the comparability of the company’s
financial statements, such as the change described in Note 2 to these consalidated financial statements. Our report to the
shareholders dated March 21, 2007 is expresst in accordance with Canadian reporting standards which do not require a
reference to such change in accounting principles in the Auditors’ report when the change is properly accounted for and
adequately disclosed in the financial statemenis.

%W@‘p/nﬁ LL”P
Chartered Accountants

Toronto, Canada
March 21, 2007
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BREAKWATER RESOURCES LTD.

Consolidated Balance Sheets !.
l

As at December 31

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) ;
' i

- —r :
2006 | 2005
Assets . frestoted-seo nota 2
Current _ ) i
Cash and cash equivalents 81,412 18,749
Restricted cash {note 3). . 1,178 3,929
Short-term»investments {note 4) 4,120 2523 .
Accounts receivable - concentrate 12,687 3,027 |
Other receivables . : 12,676 9,369
Cancentrate inventory {note 5) 43,686 47,501
Materials and supplies inventory 22,904 21,388
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,029 3,934
Future income tax assets {note 16) 14,745 6,517
Total current assets 197;33 116,937 |
- 1
|
Deferred financing fees {notes 9 and 10} . - 344
Future income tax asset, long-term {note 16} 13,440 : -
Reclamation depaosits [note 6) ’ 13,543 6,808 '
Mineral properties and fixed assets {notes Z and 7} 207,884 150,637
Long-term investmants [note.8) 14,704 5615 :
Restricted promissory notes (note 11) £2,285 62,285

509,293 342626 ¢

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity !

A

Current \
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 43,128 32,797
Provisional payments for concentrate inventory shipped and not priced {note 5} 24,246 14,807
Shart-term debt including current portion of long-term debt {note 9) 2,169 14,585
income and mining taxes payable 9,798 164
Current portion of reclamation, closure cost accruals and other a1
environmental obligations (note 12) 8,267 10,165
Total current liabilities 87,60? 72518 |
Deferred income (note 11) ‘ 6,271 . 65888
Long-term lease obligations (notes 7 and 20} 501 984
Royalty obligations (note 11) ap 52,479 62,479 |
Long-term debt {note 10} = 4,143
Reclamation, closure cost accruals and other environmental obligations {note 12} 32,293 40,099
Employee future benefits (note 13) 4493 | 5,379
Future income tax liabilities {note 16) 7.089 1,821 |
Total liabilities 200,740 194,411
: X
Shareholders’ equity {note 14) 308,553 148,215
’ 509,293 _ 342,626

Contingencies and commitments (note 20) !

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consofidated financial statements,
Approved by the Board l

_ \
Garth A. C. MacRae George E. Pirie o
Directo i

i

|
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BREAKWATER RESOURCES LTD. !

Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Retained Earmngs (Deticit)

Years ended December 31
{Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars e>|<cept share and per share amounts)

" The accompanylng notes form an-lntggral part of these consnlldated financial statements. ‘

T T o o~ ) i B g
' 2006 2005 2004
‘ . (restatod-sonroe?)  (restited-souncth?)
Gross sales revenue ; ! . . 452,233 312,965 . 240,299
Treatment and marketing costs { N 127,847 1 105381 81,856
™ Net revenue . T T . 324,386 207574 158443 |
Operating costs .~ L. : f : N . - 1. ;. o
Direct operating costs ) i ' 134,572 144,297 101,922
Depreciation and depletion . .. ol . W - 17,558 . 21,565 23,087
Reclamation and closure costs ? S : 3723 | 12093 - 483
E - S ] 1. R 155,853, | 177 955 129,905
[ Contribution from mining activities i T 168,533 | - 29,619 28538 |
‘Other expenses (income) o ’
‘General and .administrative PR 14,047 - 94715 0 10812
Interest and financing i ) 4,990 1,284 509 -
“Investment and other income -~ x4 o ’ - {8162}  (2,595) {843)
Loss or gold toan {note 8} b 1,232 1,787 -
"Foreign exchange (gain} loss on US dollar. denominated dabt {313) {492) 43 .
Other foreign exchange loss 1,074 294 1,809
N A 12868 [ 9753 12,718 |
Earmngs before t the follnwmg' - 155,665 | 19,866 15820 |
Exploration expendltures (note 2] . 9973 2,915 2,097
Write-down of mineral properties and ﬁxed assets tnnte LEE . - 879 1,178
Other non-producing property (income) costs {note 15) (9,581} 9,035 8,638
- tncome and mining tax {recovery) prc:'msu:mi {note 16) . ~_{1,257) 16,386) 571
. {865) 5,843 12,484 |
- T T "
Net earnings 156,530 14,023 3,336
Deficit, beginning of year - = b . (189,663)| -{203,686)  {(207,022)
Reduction in stated share capital and contributed surplus [_Ute Mﬁl} 172,928 : = -
Retained earnings deficit), end end of year | 139,795 | - {189,663) {203,686)
‘Basic earnings per Common Share (note 23 e ey $ 041 | % 004 $ <001
Diluted earnings per Common Share {note 23} o $ 037 $ 004 $ o001
‘Basic weighted-average number of Common Shares outstandmg {UOUS} [note 23) 383,748 363,190 353,508 -

[

|

|




BREAKWATER RESOURCES LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash ]Fllow

Years ended December 3
{Expressed in thousangs ‘of Canadian doltars)

i T
i

2006 2005 2004
— ] ! {rastatod-tae noth 2 Instm_—lwﬂ—
Operating Activities . : 1
Net earnings__. L 156,530 14023 . 3.336. |
+ . ™ :
Items not affecting cash: : ' | )
Depreciation and depletion ‘ _ 17,558 21,565 23,087
Gain on sale of investment . ! - | {851} -
Gain on sale of properties {note 15) ‘ {13,818} ’ )
Write-down of mineral properties and fixed assets (note 7) ' - 879 1,178
Unrealized loss on gold loan A - 1,656 -,
Foreign exchange gain on US dollaf denommaled toans ! {447} -
Other non-cash items - - . : (579) ' n (132
Stock-hased compensation {note 14(d)) 1,608 809 1,253
Issue of Common Shares to settle litigation {notes 15 and 20(b)) &48 - -
Unrealized deferred income 611} {56) -
Future income taxes [note 16) (18,845) {6,277 1,908
Reclamation, closure cost.accruals and other environmental obligations 3 723 12,093 4,764
Employee future_benefits {note 13} 2,139 1,713 553__|
{1,977} 31,131 32,612
Payment of reclamation, closure cost accruals and other f
environmental obligations _ {7,439} (25162) - (7,879}
Payment of employee future-benefits {note 13) C {3,025} (2,840) {968}:
|_Changes.in_non-cash working capital items (note.22) 20,459 1,524 {5,075}
Net cash provided by operating activities 158,548 18,682 22,026__
- T
investing Activities - o i _ ”
Funds advanéed on promissory note {note 11)° = {50,500) {11,785},
Reclamation deposits {6,735) {6,708) -
Short-term investments . ’ {1,207) 961 30
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 1= - (886}
Mineral properties and fixed assets - {75,853) {35,599) (25,593}
|__Proceeds from sale_ of mineral propertiesAaﬂd_flxed assets - . 335 214 210_, |
_.Net cash used in investing activities (83,260} 1 (91,632} (38,024} - |
1
Financing Activities ) ;i
Decrease {increase] in restricted cash {note 3) : * 2,751 {538} {3, 036} [
Proceeds from sale-of royalty interest {note 11} f!— 50,500 12,204 -
Issue of Commaon Shares for cash [note 14} 1892 | 8480 30,407
Issue of warrants for cash (note 14[h]) . - - 7211 -
Deferred financing fees . . : : {223) {344) -

‘ Deferred income - - i 5,096 ' - .I
Decrease in long-term lease obligations {483) - -
{Decrease) increase in short-term debt (12819) 11,874 {10,059)

| _(Decrease) increase.in fong-term debt {3,643 3,964 {14,095)_ |

|_Net cash,(used in) provided by financing activities {12,625) 79,032 22632 i
Net increase in cash during the year : 62,663 6,082 6,634 .
Cash and cash equivalents, Jbeginning of year 18,149 12,667 6,033
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - 81,412 18,749 12,667

T"'——_'_—""“""""‘

|

Supplemental Information i

Cash interest paid ’ ‘ 7 644 437 436 ;
_ Cash income and mining taxes paid .. 8,337 634 358 -

The accompanying notes form an,integral part of these conselidated financial statements.

— A - i
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BREAKWATER RESOURCES LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

|
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Generally accepted accounting prin‘cipies

The consolidated financial statements of Breakwater Resources Ltd. (the “Company”} have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted}accounting principles (“Cdn. GAAP”). The mare significant of the accounting
policies are summarized as follows:

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements i?clude the accounts of the Company and all of its subsidiaries all of which
are controlled through the ownership of majorit!y voting interests. All inter-company accounts and transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation.

Translation of foreign currencies - d:omestic and foreign operations

The Company reports its financial statements in Canadian dollars, while the currency of measurement for the
Company's operations varies depending upon I}Jcation.

The currency of measurement for the Company’s operations domiciled in Canada is the Canadian dollar, while the
currency of measurement for the Company’s folreign operations is the United States (*US”} dollar, since all of the Company’s
revenue, and a substantial portion of its expenses relating to the foreign operations, are in US dollars. US dollar amounts for the
Company’s foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars for reporting purpeses using the current rate method. Under
the current rate method, assets and liabilities ﬁre translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, revenues
and expenses are translated at average rates Eor the year, and the resulting gains and losses are accumulated in a separate
component of shareholders’ equity, described in the consolidated balance sheet as cumulative translation adjustments.

As indicated above, the currency of measurement for the Company's foreign operations, including those in Honduras,
Chile and Tunisia, is the US dollar. in each of thlese operations, the temporal method is used to translate local currency amounts
inta US dollars. Under the temporal method, all non-monetary items and the related income statement amounts are translated
at the historical rates. Monetary assets and Iialbilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,

while revenues and expenses, other than those related to non-monetary items, are translated at the average rate of exchange
for the year, and gains and losses on translatio:n are reflected in income for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities of the Company's domestic operations in Canada, denominated in US dollars, are
translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical
rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange for the year. Exchange gains and losses are
included in income far the year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, requires
management to make estimates and assumptilms that affact the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and labilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. The assets and liabilities which require management
to make significant estimates and assumptions in determining carrying values include accounts receivable, concentrate
inventory, materials and supplies iﬁventorv, mineral properties and fixed assets, long-term investments, reclamation, closure
cost accruals and other environmental obligations, future income tax assets and future income tax liabilities.
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Financial instruments
The Company enters into derivative financial instrument contracts to manage certain malrket risks which result from

the underlying nature of its business. When the Company chooses to apply hedge accounting, the Company formally documents
all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge transaction. This process includes linking all derivatives to specific asset? and liabilities on the balance
sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Company may use forward contracts to hedge exposure
to commodity price risk:for metals production, and foreign exchange forward contracts to hedgt‘aI exposure to fluctuations in
foreign currencies, relating primarily to the US dollar. Non-option derivative financial instrument‘s‘ are accounted for using the
accrual method as management views the contracts as effective hedges and has designated th‘e| contracts as hedges of
specific exposures. Hque effectiveness is assessed based on the degree to which the cash flolvlv on the derivative contracts

is expected to offset the cash flow of the underlying position or transaction being hedged. The (%ompany also formally assesses,
both at the hedge's incéption and on an engeing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are, and
continue to be, effective. Realized and unrealized gains or losses on derivative contracts that qualify for hedge accounting are
deferred and recorded En income when the underlying hedge transaction is recognized. The premiums received at the inception
of written call options are recorded as a liability and changes in the fair value of the liability are|recognized currently in income.
Gains or losses {realized or unrealized) for derivative contracts which no longer qualify as hedges for accounting purposes are
deferred on the des:gnatmn date and are recognized in income when the original hedged transaction affacts incoma while
changes in fair value are recorded in current period income. Gains or losses (realized or unreahﬁed] for derivative contracts
which relate to a hedged transaction that is no longer expected to occur are recorded immediately in income. Contracts for
which hedge accounting has not been applied, are marked-to-market, and gains and losses arei recognized in the relevant

period and included in “Gross sales revenug” on the consolidated statements of operations and retained earnings (deficit).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash équivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

The Company invests cash in term depaosits maintained in high credit quality institutions.
i

Short-term investments
Short-term investments are carried at the lower of cost and quoted market value.

Concentrate inventory
Concentrate inv'entory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost represents the average cost and
includes direct labour and material costs, mine site overhead, depreciation and depletion.

Materials and'supplies inventory
Materials and supplies inventory is valued at the lower of average cost and replacement cost.

Mineral properties and fixed assets .
The Company records its interest in mineral properties at cost and capitalizes development expenditures. When the

properties are brought into commercial production, the capitalized costs are amortized on a uni;(s-of-production basis using

current reserve estimates. If the properties are abandoned, the cost of the mineral property and;any capitalized expenditures

are written-down to fair value at that time. Administrative costs are expensed as incurred.
|
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The carrying values of producing mineral properties and fixed assets, including properties placed on a care and
maintenance basis {note 15} are reviewed when events or changes in circumstances arise that may resuit in impairments in
the carrying value of those assets. An impairn?ent loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset
is not recoverable and exceeds the assets’ failr value which is based on the present value of expected future net cash flow.
Estimated future net cash flow, on an undisco}mted basis, is calculated for each property using: estimated recoverable
reserves; estimated future metal price realization {considering historical and current prices, price trends and related factors);
and, estimated operating, capital and other cash flow. Estimates of future cash flow are subject to risks and uncertainties.

It is possible that changes could occur which'may affect the recoverability of the carrying value of mineral properties.

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Fixed a§sets are depreciated over their useful lives. In calculating depreciation, the
Company employs the straight-line method and the units-of-production method. Principally, the rates of depraciation being
applied, using the straight-line methed, are inte?ded to fully depreciate the related fixed assets over periods from two to 12 years,

In accordance with EIC 152 - “Mining Assets - Impairment and Business Combinations” the Company includes value
beyond proven and probable reserves in its estimate of future cash flow when testing for impairment and determining '

fair value.

Development costs

Development costs involve the preparétion of identified reserves for production ance the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of the mineral deposit is eistabrished. These costs are capitalized. For a new mine, the development phase
begins after the completion of a feasibility stuofly and ends upon the commencement of commercial production. Development
costs are amortized over the life of the area of interest from the date that commercial production of the related mineral occurs.
Commercial production is deemed to have corpmenced when the Company determines that the completion of operational
commissioning of major mine and plant compqnents is completed, operating results are being achieved consistently for
a pertod of time and there are indicators that these operating results will be continued.

Long-term investments
Long-term investments are recorded at cost, net of any other than tempaorary impairment in value.

Asset retirement obligations and a%set retirement costs,

The Company records the fair value of liabilities for asset retirement obligations in the year in which they are incurred.
A corresponding increase in the carrying amolmt of the related asset is recorded and then depreciated over the life of the
asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each year.

Asset retirement obligations are provid:ed for obligations that are required to be settled as a result of an existing
law, reguiation or contract related to asset retirements. Collateral on deposit with third parties to fund reclamation costs
is included in “Reclamation deposits” and "Reistricted cash” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Employee future benefits

The employee future benefits plan relates only to the employees at the Company's Myra Falls mine.

The actuarial determination of the accrlued benefit obligations for pensions and other retirement benefits uses
the projected accrued benefit method prorated on service (which incorporates management's best estimate of the expected
future return on plan assets, cost escalations, retirement ages of employees and other actuarial factors). For the purpose
of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value.




Actuarial gains {losses) arise from the difference between the actual long-term rate of return on plan assets
for a period and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for that period, or from chapges in actuarial
assumptions used to determine the accrued benefit obligation. The excess of the net accumulated actuarial gain

(loss} over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets is amortized over the lesser of

the average remaining $ervice period of active employees or to the date that Myra Falls mine op‘erations are assumed
to cease, which is currently December 31, 2011. The average remaining service period of the active employees covered
by all plans is 6 years. »
Past service costs arising from plan amendments are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser
of the average remaining service period of employees active at the date of amendment or to the”date that mine operations
are assumed to cease, ;December 31, 201

b
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized following the transfer of title and risk of ownership and the determination of the final

settlement price in accordance with contractual arrangements with customers. Title is generall\,lr'transferred on receipt of
provisional payment from the customer. Risk is transferred either when the metal concentrate |s“dehvered to the discharge
port or to the load port gependmg on the terms of the contract. Under a delivered ex-ship term, risk passes when the
concentrate is delivereq:to the discharge {destination) port. Under a cost, insurance and freight term, risk passes when the
concentrate is delivered to the load (departure} port. Generally, the final settlement price is computed with reference to the
average quoted metal p:rices for a specified period of time, normally one to three months subsequent to shipment to the
customer. Concentrate sales and receivables are subject to adjustment on final determination of weights and assays.
Provisional payments mhde by custamers upon receipt of shipments of metal concentrate are classified as current liabilities
captioned as “Provision!al payments for concentrate inventory shipped and not priced” on the co:n:solidated balance sheets.
The Company produces'zinc, copper, lead and gold concentrates. By-products such as gold and silver are often contained
within concentrate shipiaed to customers and revenue from these by-products is recognized whelr!1 all of the above revenue
criteria are met and when the corresponding major metal is recognized in revenue. All concentrate and by-product revenues

are recorded in gross revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and retained earnings {deficit).

Exploration and evaluation expenditures

The Company e:%penses all exploration and evaluation expenditures until the Company determines that the mineral
deposit is deemed commercially viable, at which time all subsequent costs are capitalized.

Exploration and evaluation expenditures on properties which do not have any known mineral deposits are expensed
as incurred until a final feasibility study has been completed, after which, future development costs are capitalized if the
final feasibility study demonstrates that future economic benefits are probable.

Exploration and evaiuatmn expenditures on properties adjacent to mineral deposits whlclh are already being
mined or developed are expensed until the Company is able to conclude that a future economic benefit is prabable through
the completion of a pre:feasnbnllty study, after which the expenditure is capitalized as a mine dm'r‘elopment cost.
Expenditures rellated to extensions of mineral deposits which are already being mined or developed, including
expenditures on the defjnition of mineralization of such mineral deposits, is capitalized as a mine development cost
following the completion of an economic evaluation which is equivalent to the completion of a pre-feasihility study.
Properties purcr:mased are recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition and are included in “Mineral properties

and fixed assets” on the consolidated balance sheets.
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fncome and mining taxes 1

The provisions for income and mining taxes are based on the liability method. Future income taxes arise from the
recognition of the tax consequences of tempo‘rarv differences by applying substantively enacted statutory tax rates applicable
to future years to differences between the finalncial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of certain assets and
liabilities. The Company records a valuation allowance against any portion of those future income tax assets that it
believes will, more likely than not, fail to be re:lalized.

Future withhalding taxes are provided on the unremitted net earnings of foreign subsidiaries, to the extent that
dividends or other repatriations are anticipated in the future and will be subject to such taxes.

Share incentive plan

The Company has a share incentive plan {the “Plan”}, which consists of a share purchase plan (“Share Purchase
Plan"}, a share option plan (“Share Option Plan") and a share bonus plan (“Share Bonus Plan”), which is administered by
the directors of the Company. The Plan provides that eligible persons thereunder include any director, full-time or part-time
employee, officer ar consultant of the Company or any subsidiary thereof. The Plan is described in note 14. The Company uses
the fair value method of accounting to recognilze an expense for stock-based compensation issued to employees through the
Share Option Plan. The expense is recognized over the options vesting period. Commen Shares issued under the Plan are
recorded at the issue price.

New pronouncements not adopted

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants issued the following accounting standards effective for the fiscal
years beginning on ar after October 1, 2006: Aécounting Standards Section 1530 “Comprehensive Income”; Accounting
Standards Section 3855 “Financial Instruments‘ - Recognition and Measurement”; Accounting Standards Section 3861

*Financial instruments - Presentation and Disclosure”; and, Accounting Standards Section 3865 - “Hedges”. These sections

require certain financial instruments and hedgle positions to be recorded at fair value. The standards also introduce the concept
of comprehensive income and accumulated ot‘her comprehensive income.

Adoption of these standards will be effective from January 1, 2007 on a prospective basis without retroactive
restatement of prior periods, except for the reélassification of equity balances to reflect "Accumulated other comprehensive
income” which will include foreign currency translation adjustments.

Under the new standard, financial instruments designated as “held-for-trading” and “available-for-sale” will be
carried at their fair value while financial instruments such as “loans and receivables”, “financial liabilities” and those classified
as “held-to-maturity” will be carried at their amortized cost. All derivatives will be carried on the consolidated balance sheets
at their fair value, including derivatives design%—]ted as hedges. Unrealized gains and losses on effective cash flow hedges
will be carried in “Accumulated other comprehensive income”, a component of “Shareholders” equity” on the consolidated
balance sheets, while any gains or losses on ineffective hedges will be recognized in earnings.

Variable interest entities

On January 1, 2005, the Company adop}ed the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Accounting Guideline
No. 15 - “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” {“Ac6-15") which requires that the Company consclidate a variable interest
entity when the Company has a variable interest, or combination of variable interests, that will absarb the majority of the entity’s
expected losses, receive the majority of the enltity's expected residual returns, or both. As at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

the Company had no entities which would qualify as a variable interest entity under AcG-15.

2005 and 2004 figures |
Certain of the 2005 and 2004 figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation.
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2. Change in Accounting Policy for Exploration Expenditures

In the fourth ﬁuaner of 2008, the Company changed its accounting policy for exploration expenditures. Under
the new policy, which has been retroactively applied, all expleration expenditures are expensed as incurred until the
mineral deposit is deemed commercially recoverable, at which time all subsequent development costs are capitalized.

The effect of this change on the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Increase (dec;rease] in the consolidated statements of operations and retained earnings {deficit) and balance sheet

amounts for the years ended December 31
)

1$000's except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004
M t s
Depreciation and depletion (1,843} {1,664} {2,809}
. M
Exploration expentiitures §,534 2,380 2,097
Net earnings (3159” {716) nz
. ]
Deficit, beginning of year (16,735) {16,019} (16,731}
Retained earnings {deficit),-end of year t21}§426) {16,735} §16,019)
i
; i
Basic earnings per-Common Share’ $(?.01] $0.00 $0.00
Diluted earnings per Common Share $i(|].01] $0.00 $0.00
¥ g i T
Mineral properties and fixed assets {18,315) {14,531} (14.215)
Cumulative translation adjustments 21 2,204 1,ao4ﬁ
2 . 1 <, - - I )

|

3. Restricted (Iashll

The restricted cash balance at December 33, 2006, of $1,178,000 {2005 - $3,929,000), inciu?es $928,000 {2005 - $2,380,000)

placed an deposit to c:over certain reclamation costs (see note 6) and $250,000 {2005 - $250,000)

I
E
4. Short-term Investments

to guarantee an operating lease.

(8000s)

2006 2005
e S — ;[ =
Marketable securities {quoted market value: 2006 - $5,501; 2005 - $421) 4,1‘20 218
Gold bullion, at cost {quated market value: 2005 - $2,313) d- 2,305

4.1"?0 2523

0 H
As at December 31, 2005, the Company held 3,867 ounces of gold bullion to facilitate an instalment payment for a gold
loan. The gold loan ins%alment was paid on January 3, 2006 and the final gold loan instalment was made on August 31, 2006

(note 9},
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5. Concentrate Inventory

‘
i

Concentrate inventory as at December 31, 2006 includes an amount of $20,245,000 (2005 - $23,880,000}) for shipments

. . . ! . . .
where title and risk of ownership have been tran?ferred to the customer but the final settlement price has not been determined.
These shipments will be recognized as revenue in accordance with the Company's revenue recognition policy set out in note 1.

6. Reclamation Deposits

|
|
#

Cash collateral on deposit at December 3|1, 2006 of $13,543,000 (2005 - $6,808,000), related to future reclamation
activities, are held by third parties to fund reclamation costs. The reclamation deposits at December 31, 2006 are in respect
of future reclamation costs at the Langlois and thFe Myra Falls mines. On sale of the Caribou and Restigouche mines in 2008,
the Company was reimbursed for outstanding reclamation depasits on these properties {note 15}.

1. Mineral Properties and Fixed Assets

40

| ooy~ j ' il .
- A :‘;” ) ] B
. 1 Accumulaied Accumulated ‘
T SR Ll 5 dep;acmllon SECEE depreclntlon S -
J Cost and depletion  Net book ﬁah’m ’ g _ﬂnd{dgpletlon ';_ Net h:upk value’ .
Equipment” : i |7 155045 104,757 50,_288
Mineral prupemes, RPER HU ey
" buildings and improvernents | 128,222 70516 57,545
Developmem ) ’ - 125,679 26,578 99,101
Asset retirement-cost 9997 9,148 " 849
S b P a8843 2059 . 08 [L SIRSISST 2GR 150637,

Development costs are amortized using the unit-of-production method. The amortization expense for 2006 was

$4,657,000 (2005 - $5,860,000; 2004 - $6,806,000).

Equipment under capital leases at December 31 were:

Equ:pment cost

Equipment under capital lease is amortized on a straight-line basis over its economic life of five years. The amount
of equipment lease costs that were amortized iF 2006 is $483,000 {2005 - $319,000; 2004 - $111,000}.

In 2005, $879,000 (2004 - $1,178,000} of mineral properties and fixed assets were written down and included in “Write-
down of mineral properties and fixed assets” nln the consolidated statements of operations and retained earnings {deficit}.
The $879,000 write-down in 2005 consisted of $|1 87,000 of development costs at the El Mochito mine and $692,000 of fixed asset
write-downs at the Nanisivik property. The $1,178,000 write-down in 2004 related to other exploration properties in the
corporate and other segments.
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8. Long-term Investments

Long-term investments are valued at cost, net of other than temporary impairments in veiulue, and relate to two

convertible debentures. ‘

{$000's) : ’ 2006 2005
e r———————————rrre—er S J M——
] E ! - s PO g i Y
Blue Note Metals Inc:-unsecured convertible debenture 9,[??9 -
Taseko Mines Limited unsecured convertible debenture ls
. N ]
{fair market value: 2006 - $10,569; 2005 - $5,203) ¢ 5,51 5 5,615
. ] j
i. . . * . . . 14704 | 5615
Ly “ s | L

The unsecuredlsuhordinated convertible debenture from Blue Nate Metals Inc. (“Blue {\|I|ote"] was issued on
August 1, 2006 (note 15) in the amount of $15,000,000 and matures on August 1, 2011, The note dHes not bear interest and is
unsecured. The debentura is convertible into comman shares of Blue Note at the option of the ﬁompany, any time after the
Caribou and Restigouche mines have been in commercial production for at least a twelve-month period (the “Redemption
Date”} and prior to the maturity date, at a price of $0.36 per share. Blue Note has the option to redeem the debenture any time
after the Redemption Djate and up to and including the maturity date by a cash payment or on maturity by issuing common
shares at a price of $0.56 per share. Management determined the fair value of the debenture onlacquisition to be $9,08%,000.

The unsecured convertible debenture from Taseko Mines Limited {“Taseko”) was issued on July 21, 1939, for $17,000,000
and matures on July 21,2009 and does not bear interest. The debenture is convertible into common shares of Taseko over a
ten-year period from the date of issuance commencing at a price of $3.14 per share escalating by $0.25 each year thereafter.
From the fifth anniuerséw date until the tenth anniversary, the outstanding principal may, at thelélection of Taseko, be
converted into common: shares at the then prevailing share price.

!

9, Short-term Debt |

(8000°s) R o 2006 2005
IS S
1
Reimbursable government assistance, unsecured, non-intarest bearing 2,04] 1,541
Goid toan (note 4) :i- 11,563
Prepayment famllty current portion (note 10} "— 1,458
Other 12”8 23
i x e ' ; ‘ T
i o : 2,16? 14585

Reimbursable gﬁvernment assistance relates to the Langlois mine with $500,000 related tu Zone 97 and being payable
when Zone 97 is profitatllle. The remaining balance relates to the installation of a hydro line at thia| Langlois mine and is payable
in April 2007. ;

On August 26, 2005, the Company entered into a gold toan agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company
borrowed 23,200 ounces of gold bullion valued at $11,883,000 {US$10,000,000). The gold loan bore mterest at 2.9% per annum
with principal gold bulllon repayments in six equal instalments over 13 months. The final gold bullmn principal repayment was
made on August 31, 2005. The Company did not apply hedge accounting to the gold loan and accordingly, the gold loan
was re-measured at eaéh balance sheet date and any gains or losses were recognized in incomlé As at December 31, 2006,
nil {2005 - 19,333} ounces of gold bullion remained outstanding. As at December 31, 2005, flnancu‘lnlg fees amounting to $242,000

had been deferred and were being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the gold Ioan
!
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10. Long-term Debt

e

©E Thl

Reimbisrsable governmel
_Prepaymerit facility

Total” "% .
Less current portion . "% -

-

BT

On May 17, 2005, the Company entered into a contract with a customer whereby the customer made a prepayment
of US$5,000,000 against future deliveries of zinc concentrate for the years 2005 through 2009 with interest payable at six month
LIBOR plus 3.5%. This prepayment facility was fepaid in May 2006 prior to scheduled maturity and the related deferred
financing fee of $102,000 at December 31, 2005 was included in “Interest and financing” on the consolidated statement
of operations and retained earnings {deficit).

11. Royalty Obligation

In December 2005, the Company entered into a royalty agreement {2005 Second Royalty Agreement”} with Red Mile
Resources No. 4 Limited Partnership {“Red Mile No.4") whereby the Company sold a basic royalty {“Second Basic Royalty"}
ona bortion of the payable zinc production over the life of the Myra Falls mine. The Company received cash of $56,500,000
which included royalty income of $50,500,000, i'ndemnity fee income of $1,141,000, interest income of $4,469,000 and prepaid
interest income of $390,000.

In December 2004, the Company entere'd into a royalty agreement ("2004 First Royalty Agreement”) with Red Mile
Resources No. 5 Limited Partnership (“Red Mile No.5"} whereby the Company sold a basic royalty (“First Basic Royalty™)
on a portian of the payable zinc production over the life of the Myra Falls mine. The Company received cash of $13,540,000,
which included royalty income of $11,479,000, indemnity fee income of $564,000, interest income of $520,000 and prepaid
interest income of $477,000.

Under the terms of the 2005 Second Royalty Agreement (2004 First Royalty Agreement), the Company is required to
make Second Basic Royalty (First Basic Royaltly] payments at fixed amounts per pound of payable zinc produced, which
escalates from $0.0016 per pound to $0.1373 pflzr pound {First Basic Royalty from $0.003 per pound to $0.016 per pound) over
the first 12 years of the agreement. In addition, for the years 2011 through 2015 (Red Mile No.5 years 2010 through 2014), the
Company granted Red Mile No.4 a net smelterJreturn of 1.50%, 2.25% or 3.00% (Red Mile Mo.5 a net smelter return of 0.4%,
0.5% or 0.7%) if the average price of zinc in a éiven calendar year exceeds US$2,600, US$2,800 or US$3,000 per tonne
(Red Mile No.5 average zinc prices of US$2,256, US$2,500 or US$2,750 per tonne), respectively.

The Red Mile No.4 royalty income component of the cash received of $50,500,000 (Red Mile No.5 - $11,785,000) was
placed with a financial institution for which thkra Company received a restricted promissory note. The restricted promissory note
earns interest at 6% (Red Mile No.5 - 6%} per annum which is recorded in “Investment and other income” on the consolidated
statements of operations and retained earnings (deficit) and matures on February 15, 2015 (Red Mile No.5 - December 15, 2014},
Pursuant to the 2005 Second Royalty Agreeme:nt and the 2004 First Royalty Agreement, interest earned from the restricted
promissory notes and a portion of the principal must be used to fund the expected basic royalty payments during the first
ten years of each agreement.
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Under certain circumstances, the Company has the right, by way of a call option, to acquire the partnership
units of Red Mile N0E4 and Red Mile No.5 for the lower of market value or the outstanding amount of the restricted
promissory note at the end of the tenth year of the respective royalty agreements.

The royalty i incame received from Red Mile No.5 and Red Mile No.4 is accounted for as debt. The long-term

portion is included i |n “Royalty obligation™ and the current portion is included in "Accounts p:;vable and accrued
liabilities” on the consohdated balance sheets. The deemed interest rate for these amounts underthe 2005 Second Royalty
Agreement and the 2004 First Royalty Agreement are 6.00% and 6.11% per annum respectweh} and the charges are included
in "Interest and flnar}cmg on the consolidated statements of operations and retained earnmgs (deficit).

The prepaid interest income and the indemnity fee received under the 2005 Second Royalty Agreement and the
2004 First Royalty Agreement have been recorded in “Deferred income” on the consclidated balance sheets and are
being amortized into income over the life of the respective agreements reflected in “Investm?lnt and other income” on the
censolidated statem\?nts of operations and retained earnings (deficit). As at December 31, ZUPIB, prepaid interest income
and the deferred indemnity fee totalled $3,575,000 and $1,362,000 respectively {2005 - $4,022,0H0 and $1,526,000 respectively).
Total interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $3,793,000 (2005 - $713,000; 2004 - $Nil) and total interest
income for the year t?nded December 31, 2006 was $4,240,000 (2005 - $715,000; 2004 - $Nil).

'

12. Reclamation, 'Closure Cost Accruals and Other Environmental Obligations

($000's} s _ 2006 2005
Asset retlrementobhgatmns - ) 33,015 41,542
' . . 1
 Closure cost accrua!s RREE co ‘ 2';059 : 2,150°
Otherenwronmentalobligations ) ' 5!486 8,572
. . R ' 40560 50,264
Less current portion . B S . 8,267 10,165 |
H ‘ . 7 . - = N ‘| - -
3 o 3T
32,293 40,099

‘ I
Other enviroqmental obligations represent expendituras required to complete modifications to the tailings facility at
the Myra Falls mine. The Company expects to camplete the required work by 2008. The estimated obligation was recorded
and is being reduced by actual expenditures incurred, As at December 31, 2006, the expenditlures since acquisition have been

$9,378,000 (2005 - $8,292,000). The current portion of $2,001,000 (2005 - $2,001,000} is included ir:| “Current portion of reclamation,

closure cost accruals and other environmental obligations” on the censolidated balance sheets,
I
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Assel Retlremem Ohll atlons
(30005)

i

< . 41502
{5,485}
“{483).
. 289

{5,432
(21)

Expendltures )
Impact of foreign exchange

T

 Aé‘atDecember 31, 2006 s 33,015¢
Less “current portaon mc!uded in Current. pomun of reclamatnon

closure cost accruals and other env:rcnmental obhgatiuns o 5,646

21,369

e PN

The estimated amount of undiscounted ca.sh flow required to satisfy the asset retirement obligations as at December 31,

2006, was $101,094,000 {2005 - $114,429,000). The expected timing of payments ranges from 2007 to 2119, and the credit-adjusted
risk-free rates at which the estimated cash flow has been discounted to arrive at the obligation, ranges from 7.17% to 7.89%
(2005 - 7.17% to 7.89%). The estimated amount of undiscounted cash flow for December 31, 2008, includes an amount of

. | - .
$66,329,000 {2005 - $66,329,000} which is for water, treatment at the Myra Falls mine in parpetuity.

13. Employee Future Benefits

The Company’s unionized hourly employees at the Myra Falls mine have a defined benefit pension plan with the
employees’ benefits under this plan specified by a collective agreement. The pension plan is a flat benefit plan and there are
no indexation features. The Company also provides extended health and dental benefits for certain employees and former
employees of the Myra Falls mine. The Company measures its accrued benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for
accounting purposes as at December 31 of each year. Actuarial reports valuing this hourly plan are prepared every three years
using the projected accrued benefit method, withI December 31, 2004 being the most recent valuation and December 31, 2007
being the next required valuation.
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The details of the Company’s benefit plans as at December 31 are as follows:
Pension Benefit Flansi Other Benefit Plai'ts )
180005} 2006 20051 2006 2005
Expected iong-terrh rate ’oi"feturn on plan assets 7.0% 7.0% N/A N/A
Discount rate on accrued pension obligations 5.25% 5.0% 5.25% '5.0%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A NiA .
Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31; | ; ’
Initial health care cost trend rate - 12.0% 12.0%
Cost trend rate declines to . 5.0% 5.0%-
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at ' 2015 2015
~ Dental care rate of expense increase 4.0% 4.0%
; . Pension Benefit Ptans, Other Benefit Plans
: - i . b
2006 2005 2006 2005

. Pension expense ) ;

Current service cost 1,463 1,200 ", 18 A7 -
Interest cost on .aqcrue‘d't)]gnefit obligation 2013 1910 i 38 ISE
‘Expected return on pension fund assets (1,998) {1,697 - - .-
Amortization of experience gains/losses 370 216 ' (42} 61
Amortization of past service cost 216 - 61 =
‘ - . , 2060 | 1629 5 134

Accrued benefit nbligaiiﬁ_ﬁé ' : '
Balance, beginning of yea.r' 39,504 31,19 | 795 1,104
Current service cost 1,463 1,200 18 17
interest cost 2,013 1910 39 65
Benefits paid ‘ N {1,403} (959) (95} (63} |
Actuarial {gain) loss - "= {1,354) 6244 69 {328) -,
Balance, end of year 40223 39,504 826 795

e e e——————————— e
Plan assets _
Fair value, beginning of year 21,7713 23333 - -
Actual return on pian assets 3,495 2,633 ’ : - -

. Employer contrlbutlnns ’ 2,930 2,776 ' - 95 B4
Benefits paid ’ {1,403) {969) - (95) (64)
Fair value, end of year 32,795 2.1 - -
Funded Status { S
Fair value of plan assets = ~ - 3279 | 27773 . - i~
Accrued benefit obligations 20223 | 39504 826 795
Plan deficit ] (2,428) {11,731) - {826) (795}
Unamortized actuarial loss {gain) 2,597 5818 - (220) {332)
Unamortized past service: costs 1,080 1,296 - 304 365
Pension liability (3751) | (4617) . (742) (162) -
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The assumed health care cost trend rates can affect the amounts reported for the health care plan:
|

Effect on"servi'ce'c'ostr . '-0.3: e
Effect on mterest cost_ e e f 09--,
Effect on year—end accrued benefrt ublngatmn R LD

Plan Assets

The allocation of plan assets is set forth ip the Investment Policy Statement. The investment Policy Statement delegates
authority to the Employee Benefits Committee to maintain and establish investment palicies relating to the defined benefit plans.
These policies and any changes to these pD|iCiBSI are approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has
adopted the following standards for the Employee Benefits Committee to follow when deciding how to invest the plan assets.

Assets shall be invested:
{a} in the sole interest of the plan participants and beneficiaries;

{b) with the care, skifl, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in
like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and of like aims; and

{c} by diversifying the investments so as to minimize the risk of large losses as well as provide a reasonable rate of return
on the assets.

The following table summarizes the pensilon plan’s weighted-average asset allocation percentages by asset category:

(5000

9.0% {

. Money market

“Fixed income - 1 1 420%
Equity, = et - 49.0%

—— g T

TJotal -

11000% |

R K
LSS v

The benefit plan assets are managed by ? major insurance company and the Company has chosen to invest in their
diversified fund which has a target investment allocation of 15% - 20% in foreign equity, 20% - 40% in Canadian equity and
40% - 60% in fixed income. The diversified fund invests in several of its segregated funds, which include Canadian and foreign
stocks, Canadian bonds and mortgages to achita\lfe diversification. The performance objective of the diversified fund is to
exceed the median rate of return of a representative sample of comparable funds over rolling five-year periods. The assumption
for the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on the relative weighting of plan assets, the historical
experience of the portfolio and the review of prmected returns by asset class on broad, publicly traded eqmty and
fixed-income indices.
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Contributions

|
The Company expects to contribute $1,130,000 to its defined benefit pension plan and $490,000 for its

post-retirement benefit plans in 2007.

i
Estimated future benefit payments

. e
13
)

{8000's) '

T

Defined benefit
pension plan

o B

Other benefits.

2007 I C

2008
2009
2010
2011 o
Aggregate of five years the_rga_aft_e;l

1,130
1,256
1,345
1,491
1743
38,125

490
513
589
642
718
0

At the December 31, 2004 actuarial report date, it was assumed that the mine would ce

ase operations on December 31,

2011. Benefit payments are assumed to cease after December 31, 2011, for the retirement supplement plan, the voluntary early

retirement alluwance," and the other benefit plans, as the obligation related to these plans will

cease once the Myra Falls mine

ceases operation, No'change was made to the defined benefit pension plan assumptions as plension payments are assumed
f

to continue after the mine ceases operations,

14. Shareholders'éEquity

Shareholders"iequity consists of the following:

($0005) - ] 2006 2005 }
Cot {reszated-see note 2)

Capital stock . 167,093 335512 °
Warrants (h) L 8,561 \8;561
Contributed surplus £ - 793 30,
Retained eamings (défi;_:it)_ 139,795 {18F9,663}:
Cumulative translation adjustrﬁérits (7,689} (9,495}

i 308,553 18215

[

The Company is authorized to issue 200,000,000 preferred shares and an unlimited num

ber of commaon shares

. ]
(“Common Shares”). No preferred shares were issued or outstanding on December 31, 2006 and 2005.

b
'

'
|
'
!
i
i
3
|
!
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Common shares issued:

(000's) ‘ L SRR Number of share“s'-'f e Kmo‘hnts '
As at December 31,2004 ., - e " 363,156 UL 305408
Private placement (a) - Tl " 13,000 L7081

Exercuse ofwarrams{b] and lc)' : - b ' 15[}0
' 2341

: Renuncuatmn of ﬂow-thmugh sha
1ssue of Common Shares-tp settlé

Employee share optlon plan proceeds of optmns exercased (d)
Value ascnbed to optmns exermsed under stock based ccmpensat[cn {d) ; T S

As at December 31, 2005 - 66 [ 1670

|

a} In August 2005, the Company issued an Aggregate of 3,000,000 flow-through Common Shares by way of private
placement at a price of $0.46 per Common Share exclusive of share issuance costs of $4,000 to CMP 2005 Resource Limited
Partnership (“CMP”} and Canada Dominion Resé:urces 2005 Limited Partnership (“CDR"). The flow-through Common Shares
had a four-manth hold period. The proceeds wel:re used to finance exploration activities in Québec. CMP and CDR are managed
by an affiliate of Dundee Corporation ("Dundee"[) which is a significant shareholder of the Company.

In December 2005, the Company issued 10,000,000 flow-through Common Shares by way of private placement at a price
of $0.60 per Common Share exclusive of share issuance costs of $295,000. The flow-through Common Shares had a four-month
hold period. The proceeds were used to finance[ exploration activities in Québec. A director of the Company purchased
145,586 of the flow-through Common Shares issied pursuant to the private placement.

In February 2006, the Company renounced $7,380,000 in Canadian exploration expenses to investors of flow-through
common shares in 2005. The tax value of the renunciation has been recorded as a liability and charged against share capital.
Since the Company has a valuation allowance, which reduces the future income tax assets, the valuation allowance has been
reduced and an income tax recovery has been recognlzed in the consolidated statements of operation and retained earnings
{deficit).

b} In consideration for restructuring a debt-facility in 2001 and 2002, the Company granted warrants to a bank syndicate
to purchase an aggregate of 1,000,000 Common Shares at $0.21 per Common Share. The warrants were exercisable until
May 8, 2005. No value was ascribed to these wa!rrants on the date of issue. During the year ended December 31, 2005,
500,000 (2004 - 250,000} of these warrants were tlaxermsed and, at December 31, 2005, none were outstanding.

In consideration for restructuring a debt; facnhty in 2001 and 2002, Dundee received warrants to purchase an aggregate
of 30,801,410 Common Shares at $0.20 per Common Share. One-half of these warrants are exercisable until March 2, 2007 and
the remainder are exercisable until May 2, 2007. No value was ascribed to these warrants on the date of issue. At December 31,
2006, the 30,801,410 warrants were outstanding.k
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¢} In consideration for restructuring certain credit facilities, the Company - pursuant to an agreement dated
December 23, 2002 - granted warrants to certain lenders and Bundee to purchase an aggregate of 2,000,000 and

1,000,000 Common Shares respectively, at $0.19 per Common Share with an expiry date of Malrlch 27, 2006. In 2006,

1,000,000 of these warrants were exercised by Dundee and, in 2005, 1,000,000 of these warranlth were exercised
by certain lenders. At December 31, 2006, none {2005 - 1,000,000) of these warrants were outstanding.

d} Share option transactions were as follows:

Options | Weighted-average

{000's) exercise price
= =

As at December 31, 2004 13,670 $ 106

Granted 2,250 045
Exercised {2,801) 032
Forfeited (934) 062 .
Expired {2,060) 233 |

As at December 31, 2005 10,085 $ 088

Granted 3,545 1.21
Exercised S {2,805) 0.55 -
Farfeited. {478) 082 -

Expired (812} 220

As at December 31, 2006 9535 § 100

As at December 31, 2006:

' Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Range of Shares Weighted-average Weighted-average i Shares Weighted-average
Exercise outstanding - remaining exercise exercisable exercise
Prices {000's) contractual life price {000's) price
’ . . . )
$0.19 - $0.50 35689 | 4 years 131 days $0.32 | ‘i 3128 $0.31
$0.51 - $1.50 4324 3 years 207 days $098 i 2543 $0.89
$1.51 - 83.00- 939 4 years 41 days $1.72 ] 483 1.9
$301 - $8.20 583 1 year 160 days $4.23 !L 583 $0.23
9,535 1 &7

|
Pursuant to the Share Option Plan, the Board of Directors have the authority to grant opt:ons and to establish the

exercise price of the cptlon at the time each option is granted, at a price not less than the closmg price of the Common Shares
on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") on the trading day immediately preceding the date of the grant of such option.
Options issued after 2003 must be exercised no later than five years after the date of ﬂ;le grant, and options issued

prior to 2003 must be exercised no later than ten years after the date of the grant and are subject to vesting provisions unless

the Board of Directars of the Company determines otherwise. One third of the options become: exercisable on each of: the date

]
of granting such options; the first anniversary date of the date of granting such options; and, the second anniversary date

i .
of the date of granting such options.
The outstandir:\g share options at December 31, 2006 expire at various dates between February 13, 2007 and August 11,
2013. The number of shares available for grants of options under the share option plan as at December 31, 2006, was

22,624,800
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On or after January 1, 2002, compensation expense for the stock-based compensation plan for employees under the
Company's Share Option Plan has been determined based upon the fair value of awards granted. Stock-based compensation
of $1,608,000 (2005 - $809,000) less the initial fair |vallue of options exercised of $815,000, {2005 - $629,000), for a net amount of
$793,000 was credited to “Contributed surplus” within shareholders’ equity on the consclidated balance sheets (2005 - $180,000).
The proceeds of options exercised noted above were credited to “Capital stock™ within shareholders’ equity on the
consolidated balance sheets. .

The fair value of each option grant has been estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions: |

-Welghted average exermse pnce
Weighted quoted market pnce per Cemmon Share at ‘date; uf gran e
Weighted-average grant-date-fair value prace per Common Share .
Expected life (years) SR
Risk free interest rate
Expected volatihty

_ Dividend yleld e

e} Under the Share Purchase Plan, employees of the Company who fall under a certain classification can contribute
up to 10% of their annual basic salary to purchase Common Shares. All other employees who qualify under the Share
Purchase Plan can contribute up to 5% of their annual basic salary to purchase Common Shares. The Company matches each
participant’s cantribution. The purchase price per Common Share is the weighted-average of the trading prices of the Common
Shares on the TSX for the calendar quarter in respect of which the Common Shares are issued. Common Shares acquired with
the Company's contribution are held in trust andldelivered to employees 12 months following their date of issue. The Company
issued 174,000 Common Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Plan during 2006 (2005 - 420,000). The number of shares
authorized for issue and available for issue unde]r the share purchase plan as at December 31, 2006 was 8,500,000
{2005 - 7,500,000} and 3,220,393 {2005 - 2,431,206} respectively.

f)  Atthe annua! and special meeting held en June 8, 2008, the shareholders approved a special resolution to reduce the

stated capital of the Company by an amount of $172,928,000, which was equal to the accumulated deficit as at December 31,
2005 prior to the change in accounting policy (nc":te 2). Capital stock was reduced by $169,628,000, contributed surplus was
reduced by $3,300,000 and the deficit was reduced by $172,928,000.

At the annual and spectal meeting held on June 8, 2006, the shareholders approved a special resolution to amend the
Plan to increase the maximum number of Common Shares of the Company that may be reserved for issuance for all purposes
under the Plan from 34,500,000 to 54,500,000. The' increase of 20,000,000 Common Shares was allotted as follows: (i) the number
of Common Shares reserved for issuance under|the Share Purchase Plan was increased by 1,000,000 (December 31, 2006
maximum 8,500,000}, (i} the number of Comman Shares reserved for issuance under the Share Option Plan was increased
by 18,000,000 {December 31, 2006 maximum 41,0?0,000]; and, (iii) the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance under
the Share Bonus Plan was increased by 1,000,000 [December 31, 2006 maximum 5,000,900).

The Company's Share Bonus Plan pEletS Commaon Shares to be issued as a discretionary bonus to any director,
full-time or part-time employee, officer or consultant of the Company, or any subsidiary thereof, who is designated under
the Share Bonus Plan from time to time. As at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company had issued 1,200,000
Common Shares under the Share Bonus Plan and had available but un-issued at December 31, 2006 3,800,000 Common
Shares (2005 - 2,800,000 Common Shares).
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g) OnJune12, 2008, the Company issued 750,000 Common Shares at a price of $1.13 per share to settle
an outstanding lawsuit (notes 15 and 20(b)).

h) On January 28, 2004, the Campany completed the sale of 57,142,858 units to a syndicate of underwriters at a

purchase price of $0.70 per unit, for net proceeds of $37,027,000, net of costs of issue of appr?iximately $2,973,000. Each
unit consisted of one Common Share and ane-half of one Common Share purchase warrant. E!ach whole warrant entitles
the holder to acquire ane Common Share at a price of $1.00 at any time until January 28, 2009.!The fair value of the warrants
of $7,211,000, net of c:osts of issue, is included in shareholders’ equity on the consclidated ball?nce sheets as "Warrants”.
On July 23, 2004, the Company acquired the Myra Falls mine for consideration which included 5,000,000 warrants
exercisable at $1.00 per Common Share with an expiry date of January 28, 2009. The fair \.raluel ascribed to the warrants
of $1,350,000 is included in shareholders’ equity on the consolidated balance sheets as "Warrlams".
The above w?rrants are listed on the TSX and as at December 31, 2006 entitled warra”ts holders to acquire

33,571,429 {December 31, 2005 - 33,571,429} Common Shares of the Company.
|

15. Other Non-producing Property (Income) Costs

Other non-praducing property income of $9,581,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 inctudes: (i) On August 1, 2006,
the Company sold the Caribou and Restigouche mines including certain assets and reclamatmn liabilities to Blue Note. Under
the terms of the agreement Blue Note replaced the Company's reclamation deposit of $5,852, 000 with the Government of
New Brunswick and |ssued to the Company a $15,000,000 unsecured subordinated convertlble debenture with a maturity of five
years (note 8). The Cbmpanv will also receive a 1 to 2% net smelter return royalty payable guarterly on zinc metal production
provided the average price of zinc for the quarter as determined by the London Metal Exchange is above US$0.65 per pound.
The gain of $13,818,000 on sale of the Caribou and Restigouche mines was included in other nl('m-producing property {income}
costs and {ii} a charge of $1,330,000 to settle a claim against the Company and CanZinco Ltd., ‘:‘a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, by Kal\;vea Financial Corp., BVi (“Kalwea"} inote 20).

Due to the depletmn of mineral reserves, the Company closed the Nanisivik, Bouchard Hébert and Bougrine mines in
September 2002, Februarv 2005 and September 2005 respectively. The Company also suspended operations at the Caribou and
Langlois mine in 1998 and 2000 respectively. In 2006, in addition to the amounts in (i) and (ii} aPlove $2,907,000 (2005 - $9,035,000;
2004 - $8,638,000) of care and maintenance costs were incurred on the Nanisivik, Bouchard-Hébert, Bougrine and Caribou
mines. Prior to November 2005, the Langlois mine was held on a care and maintenance basis.

!

16. Income and Mining Taxes

Income and mining taxes differ from the amount computed by applying the statutory felderal income tax rate for
the year ended Dece;mber 31, 2006 of 37% (2005 - 36%, 2004 - 37%) to net earnings, excluding income and mining taxes.
The differences are s;ummarized as follows:

i
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(mw

S 2006 | 2005 - 2004
Tax provision- (recovery) at statutory rate s N 57,598 ~ é:SJZ <0 71,180
Federal resource allowance - St {1,548) [ . -608 . . * {1,035)
Unrecognized tax benefit relating to Iosses ? 4633 | - ?,SUB 4,366
Current year losses recognized ] (20,232) | -~ - -
Reduction in valuation allowance . o {2,345) - -
Different effective tax rates on earnings {icsseé) in foreign subsidiaries (13,034) {5,291} {163}
Benefit of previously unrecogmzed iosses avaﬂahle for carry forward : (25,7117) . (13,231) {5,107}
Other L (6516) | . 161 . 108
Mining taxes ans f 5964 [ . 148 1,222

’ - S (1.257) [*16986) - &M

As at December 31, 2006, the significant components of the Company's future tax assets {liabilities) were as follows:

{$000's) L 2006 | 2005
e . o —
Future tax assets f S
Loss carry forwards o 26,540 | 60,420
‘Mineral properties and flxed assets ‘-‘, ) ; 213231 | -227435.
Reclamation and closure. cnst accruals i P 1271 17658
Deferred income LA 1{ 2104 [ <2518
Future tax assets before valuation'a{llpwance ; 254602 | 308,031
Valuation allowance -y 226417 | 301514
Future tax assets 28,185 6,517
Future tax liahilities . :
Mineral properties - mining tax. ] {7,089) {1,921)
Net future tax assets ‘ Lt 21,09 | - 459%
($000's) AT I R 2006 | 2005 2004
fncome and mining tax provision-(recovery) | -
Current income and mining tax provision (rgcovery) R 14,209 ~:(109) {148}
Future income and mining tax {recovery) piovision {15,465) (5,277) 19
{1.257) (6 986) . 5N

At December 31, 2006, the Company has net operating loss carry forwards in Canada of approximately $80,000,000,

which expire at various dates through 2016.
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17. Financial Instruments

The Compan\; manages its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices, foreign exch!xnge rates and interest
rates by entering into derivative financial contracts in accordance with the Company’s formal risk management policy
approved by the Board of Directors and managed by the Company's Hedge Committee. The Companv does not hold or issue
derivative contracts for speculative or trading purposes.

, . - . | .
The Company’s short-term financial instruments, made up of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and short-term debt are carried at cost which, due to their short-term
nature, approximates their fair value.

These fair value estimates are management’s best estimates and are not necessarily ‘?dicative of the amounts the
Company might pay or receive in actual market transactions. The amounts realized in an actu.;al transaction may differ from

these estimates. Potential taxes and other transaction costs have not been considered in estimating fair value.

Credit Risk :
The Company} is subject to credit risk through trade receivables. The Company manages this risk through evaluation
and monitoring processes and carries credit insurance when necessary. Credit risk is funherllmitigated through the use of
provisional payment arrangements and the use of letters of credit where appropriate. Credit risk also relates to derivative
contracts arising frorh the possibility that a counterparty to an instrument in which the Company has an unrealized gain fails

to perform. The Company does not consider the credit risk associated with these financial instruments to be significant.
|
Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company operates using principally the Canadian dollar and the US dollar, and may be negatively affected by
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Company manages this risk by minimizing the nun}Ber of transactions that result in
the settlement currency differing from the currency of the initial transaction. In addition, the Company’s sales are denominated
primarily in US dollars, while a significant percentage of its expenses are denominated in non-US dollars. This exposes the
Company to increased valatility in earnings due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. TheI Company periodically uses
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rates on identifiable foreign currency exposures. Gains and
losses on these contr:acts when they are designated as hedges are reported as a component of the related transactions,

The Company had no foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Commodity Price Risk

The profitability of the Company is directly related to the market price of metals produced. The Company reduces price
risk by hedging against the price of metals for a plmtion of its production. The main tools used to protect against price risk are
forward contracts and options. Various strategies are available using these toals including spot deferred and synthetic puts.

The Company periadically enters into forward sales and written call options to effectively provide a minimum price for
a portion of inventories and future production. In 2006 and 2005, the Company chose not to apply hedge accounting. As a result,
outstanding derivative contracts were marked-to-market and gains and losses were recognized through earnings each period.

The Company had no commodity hedges outstanding at December 33, 2006. At December 31, 2005, the Company had
1,050,000 ounces of silver call options with an average strike price of US$7.50 per ounce maturing from January to June 2006
and 25,000 ounces af gold call options with an average strike price of US$455 per ounce maturing in December 2008.

18. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions are disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements (note 14) except
for the following:

a} As at December 31, 2005, management feLes payable to Dundee totalling $500,008 relating to $250,000 in each of 2003
and 2002 are outstanding and are included in “Accounts payable and accrued liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets.

b} For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company provided to Glencairn Gold Corporation {"Glencairn”}, formerly
Btack Hawk Mining Inc., a company that was related through common dirgctorship, logistic and procurement services which
enable both companies to reduce costs and negotiate favourable terms for the purchase of materials and supplies. Due to the
change in the composition of the Board of Directors of Glencaimn, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, Glencairn
was not considered to be a related party.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, sale of supplies and charges for administrative services to Glencairn totalled
$652,000. This amount has been reflected in the consclidated statements of operations and retained earnings {(deficit} as a
cost recovery and accordingly, is reflected as a rleduction in either "Direct operating costs™ or “General and administrative
expenses”.

e
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19. Guarantees |

a) AtDecember 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has an outstanding letter of credit in th? amount of $250,000
which is renewable annually and relates to the operating lease at the Nanisivik mine {note 6).

: ‘ |
t

b) In consnderatmn for the receipt of indemnity fees of $564,000 and $1,141,000 from Wllshlre Financial Services
Inc. {“Wilshire”} related to the 2004 First Royalty Agreement {note 11) and the 2005 Second Royalty Agreement {note 11}
respectively, the Company has indemnified and holds harmless Wilshire from and against anv and all losses based upon,

arising out of, or othewvlse in connection with or as a result of any claims relating to a breacll: or default by the Company under
the 2004 First Royalty Agreement and the 2005 Second Royalty Agreement. As at December Sll 2008, the maximum liability was
$11,785,000 (2005 - $11,785,000) and $50,500,000 {2005 - $50,500,000} under the 2004 First Royalty Agreement and the 2005 Second
Royalty Agreement respectively. The indemnity fees were deferred and are being amortized oln a stralght line basis over the

term of the respectwe agreements.

|
20. Contingencies and Commitments ‘

a) On October lU, 2002, the Nunavut Water Board {"NWB") issued to the Company a renle[zwal of its water license, ‘
for a period of 5.5 years commencing on October 1, 2002. One of the conditions contained in t|l;e water license renewal
was a requirement tl?at the Company guarantee the financial security required by the Iicensel.‘The NWB established that
the amount of security required by the license was $17,600,000. Of that amount $5,000,000 had.been previously posted in
the form of indemnity bonds pursuant to the expired water license. The issue of the outstanding balance of $12,600,000
was to have been addressed by the Company within 30 days of the issuance of the water license.

In February 2003 the Company delivered to the Department of Indian Affairs and Northlem Development {"DIAND"},

the federal governm?nt agency responsible for the administration of financial security matter‘s related to any water license
issued by the NWB, an unsecured promissory note in the amount of $1,000,000 in order to satisfy the full requirement for
financial security set: out in the expired water license. On July 31, 2003, the indemnity bond in’'place in the amount of $5,000,000
to satisfy the previous water license expired, and it too was replaced by an unsecured promislsory note issued by the Company.
These two unsecured promissory notes satisfied the full requirement for financial security set out in the previous
water license.

Following the; issuance of the new water license in October 2002, protracted discussicll;'ns were held with
DIAND regarding ths form of security to be adopted to satisfy the financial security requirements of the new water
license. Those discussions cutminated in March 2005, when another unsecured promissory note was issued by the
Company in the amoynt of £11,600,000 to satisfy the balance of the financial security requirement. With that transaction, |
the full amount of the financial security required, being $17,600,000, has been satisfied using unsecured promissory notes. |

l
|
|
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b) In 2003, Kalwea commenced an action against the Company for damages in the amount of $560,000 plus additional
annual minimum royalty payments of $70,000 each quarter on October 1, January 1, April 1, and July 1, sequentially. Kalwea
ctaimed a transfer of certain mining claims in Restigouehe County, New Brunswick. The Company and Kalwea signed a
settlement agreement on June 12, 2006 whereby tlhe claims were dismissed {note 15).

¢} Taseko and Gibraltar Mines Ltd. {“Gibraltar”) had notified Boliden Westmin {Canada} Limited ("BWCL"} {now a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and others in 2001 about indemnification claims made by Gibraltar pursuant to
the asset purchase agreement entered inte in 1939, whereby Gibraltar acquired certain assets from BWCL on July 21, 1959.
The claims were described as {a} latent tax liabilities estimated to be $3,750,000 relating to an environmental reclamation
deposit that was transferred to Gibraltar, (b) poterlltial tax liability estimated to be in excess of $500,000 with respect to an
employee severance trust [if this claim is successful, it exposes the Company to further direct liabilities which have not been
quantified), and {c} a claim for the potential loss of credits under the British Columbia Mineral Tax Act in the amount
of $54,000,000 as a result of alleged delays in signing an election and transfer form.

In June 2008, Taseko and Gibraltar served|a statement of claim on the Company and Boliden Ltd. (fermer parent
corporation of BWCL). In December 2006, the Company filed a statement of defense on its own behalf and on behalf of Boliden
Ltd. in accordance with the indemnification obligations pursuant to the share exchange agreement dated July 8, 2004 between
the Campany and Boliden Ltd. While a final outcome cannot be determined at this early stage, the Company believes at this
time that the claims are without substantial merit'and that liability, if any, is not likely to have a material effect on the
Company's financial position.

Regarding claim {c) noted above, based on previous correspondence from Taseko and the exclusion of this claim from
the statement of claim, the Company believes this claim has been withdrawn.

d)} The Company is alse involved in other legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary course of its business.
The Company believes these claims are without merit and is vigorously defending them. In the opinion of the management, the
amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the financial position, results of operations
or cash flow of the Company.

BREAKWATER RESOURCES L|TD.
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g) The Company's mining and exploration activities are subject to various federal, provincial and state laws
and regulations govérning the protection of the environment. These laws and regulations are continually changing
and generally becoming more restrictive. The Company conducts its operations so as to protect public heaith and
the environment and believes its operations are materially in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has made, and expects to make in the future, expenditures to comply with such:laws and regulations.
\ .

f) Lease Commitments

4 .« .
The Company is committed to payments for operating leases for business premises and equipment and future minimum

lease payments under capital leases as follows:

Operating Future Minimum
($000s). - ‘Lease Payments Lease Payments
2007 ! 791 545
2008 641 300
2009 443 . 146
2010 361 12t
201 : ) Kl -
2012 and thereafter - -
Sub-total PR 2210 1,112
Less: amount représenting interest
at rates ranging from 4.1% to 9.0% N/A m1n
. 2210 995

i
t
21. Segment Info}mation

The Company operates in the mining industry and has operating mines in Honduras {El Mochito), Chile (El Toqui)
and Canada (Myra Falls} and has a mine under development in Canada {Langlois) as well. The Company has three mines
which have been closed and are undergoing reclamation, two in Canada {Nanisivik and Bouchard-Hébert} and one in Tunisia

. L . . . . Nt .
{Bougrine). During 2006, the Company disposed of the Canadian Caribou and Restigouche mines which were on care and
maintenance at the time of sale. The Company's operations produce a variety of concentrate.lslfor sale which are dependent
on the particular mineralized deposits at each location and include zinc, copper, lead and golld concentrates some of which

also contain silver and gold.

The accounting policies adopted by these segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies !note 1). The products and services in each of the reportable segments, f:xcept for corporate activities,

are essentially the same, the reportable segments have been determined at the level where decisions are made on the

. | . . . B .
allocation of resources and capital, and where internal financial statements are available.
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Segment Information

For the Year E

nded December 31, 2006

|
|
|
|
|
|

(s00s) . ElMochito ~ . ElToqui " Myra Falls LA .Langlois ‘
Operating Segment Mine < Mine Mine ° " Mine Total™
Gross sales revenue . 157,054 99,776 199,758 - 456,585
Treatment and ! '

marketing casts {40,477} (30,277) (57,161) - (127.915)
Net ravenue - 1'16,574. 69,499 142,597 - 328,670
Direct operating costs (31,765} (18,941} (83,366} . - (134,572}
Depreciation‘aﬂnd depletion 1[5,635) ~{2812) (8,929} - (17,380)
Reclamation and . - .. L -

. closure costs f {770) " (298} {1,473) S {100} (2,641} -
Contribution {loss) from il T . T -

mining activilies T840 - T 47,48 48329~ ° "{100) V4,077
General and:administrative b - - - =
Intarest and financing z - - - - ~
Investment and other incoms yo- - - - -
Loss on-gold lean _ ! - - {1,232 - {1,232)
Foreign exchange gain-on :

US dollar denominated debt - - - - -
Other foreign exchange foss :l - - - - -
Exploration expenditures {1,235) {4,145} {617) - {5,997}
U_thérpun-broducing property T e
" income (costs) ~ = - -
income arid hﬁi'ni,r}g‘taxt,'_;: | P o R .

. {provision) recovery : - .- {20,365 - - ©{1,781) . 26202 " *" {5,167) (1)
Net earnings {foss) - - 56,8007 41,522 72682 7 -.-"  (5,267) 165,737 -
Capital expenditures ; 9603~ 8,363 16,536 39,535 14,097
Mineral properties and f

fixed assets 21,502 24,669 64,844 89,410 200,425
Identifiable a;sets ';40,248 51,504 203,110 93,904 388,766
Information about major customers - Summary of net revenue from major customers for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Revemie Source " : RVehqu'G:e,neriiled_Frnm
{8000's) ¢ ‘Myra Falls El Mochito . "Bl Togui Total
Customer 1 .- i 62,635 - 5,037 67,672
Customer 2 y 50,905 8,635 - 1,564 61,104
Customer 3 ' 7.946 1598 24,238 33,775
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
I
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Bougrine  Bouchard-Hébert Nanisivik Caribou
Mine Mine " Mine Mine
63 - f - - -

‘ i
68 - - -
16 ' - - _

1
_ _ - -
(208) {414 (219) 241)

' ; .

gy - (414} {219) {241)
T i i i
(782 - 3227) - -
(889 (781} 81 11,226
- i - - -
(1843) - (4,422) (138) 10,985
1 (1 - -
1709 | . 2830 1,218 -
2,201 ; 2,3M 15

5,030
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Corperate
and Cther

- {4,300}

-

Cnnsnlidatd '

(4.300) '

{178}

{4,478}

{14,047}
{4,990
8,162

Kixc
(1.074)

1,556

1,702
110,910
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Segment Information

{reststed-see nata 2

|
|
|
I
I
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 ‘
T

{$000's) El Mochito El Toqui - Myré Falls Bauchardflféhen Bougring
Operating Segiment Mimja ' Mino * Mine Mine Mine
Gross sales revenue 85.4H:i 49,634 113,745 25129 41976
Treatment and marketing costs {29,439} (18,989) {34,674) {6,853} {15,436)
Net revenue - . 55,97? 30,645 - 79,061 18,276 26,540
Direct operating costs* {29,81?.} t22,19?)_' . {67,125} (10,334) (14,821
Depreciation and dapletion 5.1 !) (3,041} {8,135} {603) {3,895}
Reclamation and closure costs {648) {295} {1,371} {283) (432)
Contribution {loss) from | .
mining activities 19,806 5112 *. 2,420 7,056 7,386
General and administrative -‘; - . o _
Interest and financing i _ _ _ _
investment and other income 1 - - - -
toss on gold loan T[ - {1,787) - -
Fareign exchange gain.on US ; .
dollar denominated debt - - - - -
Other foreign exchange loss % - - - -
Exploration expenditures {22?} {1,904) - (795} -
Write-down of mineral prqperties |
and fixed assets - {1&‘{1 - - = -
Other ron-producing property ,
costs < - - {3,468) {778)
Income and mining tax |
{provision) recovery 5,453 1,003 {105} {248} —
Net earnings (loss) 24,843 4211 528 2505 6,608
Capital expenditures 7,974 5191 17,795 n 68
Mineral properties and 1
fixed assets 15,93! 20,445 55,920 3504 2530
Identifiable assets 37,218 36,313 168,138 4,313 6,294
Capital expenditures for the Myra Falls mine includelfixed assets purchased through capital leases of $384,000.
|
Information about major customers - Summary of ne:t revenue from major customers for the year ended December 31, 2005,
Revenita Source ] Revenue Generated From
]
($000s) IMyra Falis £l Mochito £l Toqui Bougrine Total
Customer 1 j 3959 - - - 37959
Customer 2 ! - 6,707 15,162 6,443 28312
Customer 3 i 2,952 . 18,088 3239 3312 27,591
Customer 4 ; 4,786 19,604 - - 24,390
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
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y  Langleis Nanisivik Caribou . : Corporata ‘
Total . Mine Mine Mine . Total « | and Other Consolidated
315,882 ; - - - - (2917) 312,965
{105,391} ‘ - - - - - {105,391)
210441 I - - - - (2917) 207514
(144,207} ! - - - - - (144,297)
(21,385} g - - - - {180} (21,565)
(3,029) (92) {8,578} {394) {9,084) - (12,083)__
| - o
41,790 ; {g2) {8,578} {394) W {9084} . {3,097) 29619
= - - - - {9.475) {9.475)
- - - - -~ {1,284) {1,284)
- - - - - 2,595 2,595
(1,787} : - - - - - {1,787)
'g f ;
- - - - - 43z 492
- - - - - 294) 294}
{2,928) ; - - - - 13 {2.915)
. : 1 b
{187) i - - (692) - 692 - (879)
(4,246) {466} {2,526} (1,813} 14.808) 16 {9,035)
6,103 ; 2 72 - : 99} 784 6,986
38,735 H (531) (11,724} (2.207) (144621  {10.250) 14,023
31,339 5,216 {30} - ~ 5,186 58 36,583
99,320 L 49,287 . . 1,620 - 50907 | 400 150,637
; 25233 ! 51,492 3,622 1,227 534 | 13,949 342,626
’ |
;
i
!
i
i
|
f
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Segment Information

For the Year Ended December 31 2004

. Centrlbutlun (Inss} frem
-{'*mlmng actlvmes»,

!nterest and fnancmg
Investment and’ other mcome
Fore|gn exchange Ioss on US

Exploratmn expendltures ’

‘and fixed assets._ ‘;." g

H

< ‘costs

.. Ingome.and mining tax - .
TLnT T ' . L.
o .{provision).recovery . -

Rec!amanon and.closure. costs a, .

General and admmlstratwa o

dellardenomineted debt - :
Dtherfmelgn exchange Inss P i

. Wme down of mmeral propames

Other non- producang prnperty '

;3'000‘5) I‘Moc .l SRt “ﬂ qui LT My fa'll_s ’_ Beuehard Hében . /Bougrine ( -

- Ope -_‘,_ e « - ‘ _' ! "‘,—_“-. 7 e e: AR : in S Mme . '.Mine;“:' -
Gross sales revenue L °t 62, 005 38670, 18002 Comsaz : 33889~
Tréatment and marketmg Costs, % (21 547) "l15-f4'63) : 3_{]6,252} : :f‘ (25,937} .- (12847 "
“Netrevenue ~.-" " .0, %) 7804587 232077" T ATT50 o g e e 62,175 foL T, 208020 <
Dlrecl operatmg costs . (13 539) . ;5{13.ﬁﬂ7) N 71 034! ' " {17,608).
Deprac;auon and depletmn ©{2,051) (3,290} To(5585) .. - s

(6643

.(294) LG

{542}

LB b e

1{1,625) :

S 1234).

{5135) !

ERR I [,
e L =

Net earnings {loss} .;"-”

%___.;« “‘4

T (5,089) ", -

-~ 20,885

e, (5,185)., .

—

[ <Capital expenditures .-
Minerél properties and
fixed assets {

57,

K Idennf:ahle assets’», =
§L

'8,566' :

19

. ~35

i I
747. SRR

3n

N 128

e

RevenueSource ]

(sdo0's)

SR

o

- Revenue Generated Frem

~ “Total_ ]

. Customer1. . - -
+ Customer 2'

. 3099

P “_'.) "_ ol
“MyraFalls <" .-
= =

. 5ages |
.. 23307
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. N . i
: . 1 é Langlois Nanisivik ‘Caribou : | Carporate - i
Total ! Mine Mine Mine Total ' and Other Consofidated
240,248 , - - - - 5 51 240,293
. (81856) | ¢ - - ~ - - . (81,856)
158302 ] R - - B 51 158,443
{101,922) . ' - - - - - {101,922}
{22,210} ‘ {2) - - (2 {875} {23,087}
{3,730} (86) {715} (365) {1,166} - {4,896}
< 30530 (88 {715) - {385) {1168) . {824) 28,538
- i - - - ‘- - {10,812) {10,812
- t _ - - - {509) {509)
- : - - - - 843 843
. =i : 3
: - - - - - - (431) {431)
- , - - - - {1,809) {1,809)
{3366) - 86 - - 8 1,183 {2.007)
-t - - - Lol (1,78
!
- 1 (108) - (6,834) {1.641) (8,583) : {55) (8,638)
s 4 "o - - o 743 (511}
25839 t {99) {7,549) " {2,006) S {9854) {12,849) 3,336
26,021 , 4,094 {200) - 3,894 . 1,678 25,593
! : :
w1 43,938 2,342 - L8280 |- 508 138858
. 01988 b asem o 6,954 1210 . 53858 1745 ~,;73,st‘§ :
i
|
22. Analysis of Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital Items
($000's) |1 2006 2005 2004
i At AR . i
Accounts receivable - concentrate . (8187 3,161 3693
‘Other receivables 4 (3.307) {2,881} (282)
Concentrate inventory ) ¢ 4,228 8,590 (31,734)
"Materials and spplies inventory: . ft {1,478} 2,048 2251
Prepaid expens_é.'s and other current assets " 82 1,308 (2,358)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,070 {2,205) 1,437
Provisional payments for concentrate inventory shipped and not priced 1 94m (8,220) 24719
Income and mining taxes payable ' 4 9,580 (217). 189
' - ‘g 20,459 1,524 {5,0?5]
.ot L
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23. Earnings per Common Share |

Basic earnings per Common Share {"EPS/

outstanding during the year. The calculation of diluted earnings per Common Share has been computed using the treasury

stock method which assumes that options and warrants with an exercise price lower than the average quoted market price

were exercised at the later of the beginning of the period, or time of issue. In applying the treasury stock method, options and

warrants with an exercise price greater than the|average quoted market price of the Common Shares are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per Comman Share as the effect is anti-dilutive, The average quoted market price of the

Common Shares during 2006 was $1.30 {2005 - SO.:48; 2004 - $0.53).

$0.471

: so.avi,,

383748
37,757

,.$004

* 20,300

5004
% 58001
b
369,190 -

353,508
2329

505" ‘%389490 o Jsano-‘i

24. Subsequent Event

On March 2, 2007, Dundee exercised 15,4;00,705 warrants to purchase 15,400,705 Comman Shares at $0.20 per Common
Share {note 14(b)). On March 14, 2007, Dundee exercised 15,400,705 warrants to purchase 15,400,705 Common Shares at $0.20

per Common Share {note14(b}).

25. Reconciliation with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The consolidated financial statements oflthe Company have been prepared in accordance with Cdn. GAAP which are
different in some respects from those applicable'in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP"} and from practices prescribed

by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC”).

Variations between balance sheet items and statements of operations items as shown in the consolidated financial

statements under Cdn. GAAP and the amounts determmed using U.S. GAAP are as follows:

BREAKWATER RESOURCES LlTD.




Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Expressed in thousands of Canadian doltars)

As at December 31, 2006

[ {restated - note 2}
Cdn. Note 25 us. Gdn, Note 25 U;;S.

H . * GAAP Adjustments Reterence GAAP GAAP “Adjustments fleference GA{}P
Assets _ i o T - :
Cash and-cash equivalents 81,412 - 81412 18,749 {7.406) {c) 11,343
Restricted cash 1,178 - 1178 3929 /1 7406 {e) | 1133
Short-term investments 4,120 983 {d) 5,103 2,523 203 (d} 2,726
Concentrate inventory 43,686 6,452 {b) 50,138 47,501 E - 47,501
Other current assets - . 67,041 - 67,04 44,235 - . 44235

‘ Mineral[iropeniés and fixed assets 207,884 16,136} bt | 199,960 150,637 ' {135} (e} 148,444
’ (592) (e} 1 nase) 1

. {1,196) {f) _ :

Long-tarm investments 14,704 20273 {g 4917 5615 | (M2} ‘g 5,203

Other fong-term assets 89,268 - 89,268 69,437 - 69,437

Intangible assets - = - - 1,296 {(h 1,296

: L 509,293 19,784 5290771 342626 1] (1,106) |_3ansa |
Liabilities and Sharehoiders Equity T ) :
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities | 43,128 - 43,128 32,797 940 {c} 33,737
Other current liabilities PR Y - as,080 | 38721 - 39,721
Employee future henefits 4,493 3,761 {h) ‘8,254 5,379 1 7.114 {h} 12,493
Qther long-term liabilities 108,639 - 108,633 116,514 - 115.5}‘4
Capital stock - 167,083 169,628 {a} | 3377 | 335512 ;| (1,082} c) | 318794
- ’ (1,082) (c) | (14208 te)

{14,206) (el . {430} fitn} "
{458} fin) 1 '
2) i ' :

a8 {i(2)}

_ ) 156 {if3)) , :
Warrants ' 8,561 - 8,561 8561 . - 8,561
Contributed surplus ° 793 3,300 fa) | 399 | 330 . (28) (i 3,476

' {134) (i) ) 48 (i(zh ‘
: 156 {3y h
Retained earnings {deficit)- 139,795 {172,528) {a) {7,224) | 1189,663) ' 142 {e) | 1177.666)
SR 316 (b} | 13am te) .
1,082 {ch {11,458} 1] ;
= ) A {d) (412} fa) ;
v 13614 fe) 458 {ith) :
{1,196) i {48) {it2))
H 1,720 {a) . {156) (it3n )
! 458 it !
136. (it _
K {48) if2)} |
i | o (156) ({30 | .
Cumulative translation adjustments {7.689) 1,689 {i} - {9,495) 9,495 i -
Accumulated other )
» comgrehénsive ingome - 1,000 @ | (L - 203 fd | (15,110)
o 8,553 ig) 1 ;
(3,761) {h} {5,818} {h}
{1.689) {i (9,495) fi ;
’ ! 509293 | 19784 529077 | 32626 | (1.106) 341,520
' EXPLORE,[fIINVEST, OPTIMIZE

65




66

Consolidated Statements of Operation |
{(Expressed in thousands of Canadian doilars:, except for per share information}

I CSTEh 2006 - { 2005 - - 2004
| s
Net earnings as shown in the consclidated financial - ) v
statements under Cdn. GAAP - . Do T e e mess a0 o333
Additienal {expense} income: ‘ ' " ' )
Adjustment to recognize revenue net of costs at Laﬁglois mine (b} : 349 - -
Adjustment for depreciation and depletion at Langfms ming [b) : ’ e {331 - -
Adjustment relating to flow-through shares ¢c) cal S .~-3;"‘"j'4_:;-' 940 142 -
Adjustment to mark-to-market short-term investments {d) e (17 - -
Adjustment to depfetion in connection with shef:res
issued to promoters or shareholders (e) ] ‘ , . 143 293 261
Adjustment relating to depremanon and depletwn (f) o 262 404 .. 268
Adjustment to mark-to-market Iong term mvestrnents (g) - . {2,852) =
Adjustment to mark-to-market embedded optmn in long-term investments {g) - 12,132 - 2,348
Adjustment for interest on long-term investments (g) : - - 92
Adjustment stock-based compensation (i{1)) t B T T 136 - -
' : RS
Net earnings (loss) under U.S. GAAP L | 17042 | 1200 6305
Basic earnings {loss) per share under U.S. GAAP e R $0.44 1$0.03} ““$Q.02
Diluted earnings per share under U.S. GAAP ; S R f $040°.] $003 - - $0.02
Effect of U.S. GAAP adjustments on basic earmngs (ioss) per share - : $0.07 ($0.01) $0.01

Consolidated Statements of Operations}Presentation

Under U.S. GAAP, the measure “Contribution from mining activities” is not a recognized term and would therefore

not be presented. “Contribution from mining activities” when adjusted for the items in the table below is comparable to

the terminology “Earnings from operations” under U.S. GAAP.

The following table reconciles * Contnbutmn from mining activities under Cdn. GAAP" to “Earnings from operations
under U.S. GAAP”.

{Expressed in thousands of Canadian-dollars) L —| 2006 . | 2005 -2004 |
- " t ‘ RO : ~ ] Ve |mg=a.$;-21
Contribution from mining activitiesﬁnderCdn.fGAAP - : 168,533 | 29,619 28,538
General and administrative . o (14,047) {9,475) {10,812}
Exploration costs - : o : (9.973) |. (2915  {2,097)
Write-down of mineral properties and fixed. assets S . B - 1 879 | -{1,178)
" Dther non-producing property mcnme(costsl. o —. ' 9,581 (9,035} {8,638)
Aggregate adjustments for U.S. GAAP i .
(excluding adjustment reIating‘tq"flpw-thrn:ugh ngrgs) . , S 12,972 (2,155) . 2,969
Earnings from operations under USE GAAP N o : ';' ‘ 167,066 5160 3782

|
|
|

BREAKWATER RESOURCES

|
|




I

.

For U.S. GAAP purposes, the components of non-operating income {loss) are as follows:
1

(Expressed in thauisands of Canadian dollars) T 206 | 2005 . 2004
: — T - " RGN T wadiee . eswsden |

¥ - S e N nowd) - m-z:

" Interest andimanémg S oagen 1o (509)
Investmentand nther‘ ﬁbome . -_ ' j' : IJ 8,162 2595 - 8?13
Lass an gold Iuan - S S . (1232 { (8 - -
‘Foreugn exchange ga E{[css} : - A s : e 198_-“"-._:’. (2,2}10)
‘N‘Adjustment relatlngt -through shares(c) . . '_ B “ 940 BT TR N
an-qperatlngr!cham‘e,(lpss}for US.GAAP o o f ‘219 | (e (1.908)

|

The followingltable reconciles “Net earnings under U.S. GAAP” to “Comprehensive infome under U.S. GAAP™.

‘ (gxprésséd in thousands of Canadian dollars). i

] {1 206 | 2005 2004 |
. Net earnmgs underUS GAAP« - -; L T -1 170,442 12,010, 63D5-
Ad|ustment relatlng to unrealazed gams un short term anvestments (d) R 1onoo0 |. 203 1 253
Ad;ustment relaung tc unreahzed galns on long-term mvestments (g} ' 85953 - -
‘ Change in cumulatlve transfatlon ad|ustment account {j) _ | 1,806 {2,289) (4,8'17'}
'Adjustment to recogmse pensuon and:t_tler post-retirement liabilities (h) ; : i - {5,818) - {5“101

B E oLt "

fComprehenswe,|ncome,underrU.S. GAAF:;_'R .
Sy Aeeve "0 R . NP S | Thg leme

181801 | 4106 " Y. 2701

L
£

There are no :Eiiﬁerences in cash flow provided from operating activities, financing acti}zities and investing activities as
presented in the statements of cash flow under Cdn. and U.S. GAAP except as follows. Under|U.S. GAAP the determination
of cash provided fronlfoperating activities would reftect the net earnings {loss) under U.S. GAAP {as opposed to Cdn. GAAF)
with appropriate adjustments to non-cash items and non-cash working capital items with respect to adjustments disclosed
in the balance sheet and statement of operations schedules above to arrive at the same cash ﬂow from operating activities
amount under both C?n. and U.S. GAAP. Also, the sub-total within the caption "Non-cash |tem‘s‘ under “Operating Acgvntnes
is not permitted; therefore the reader should disregard the sub-total of {$7,977,000), $31,137,000 and $32,612,000 for 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectlvelv for U.S. GAAP purposes. As well, changes in restricted cash would be shown as an investing actlwty

rather than a flnancmg activity.

Differences between Cdn. GAAP and U.S. GAAP ' -

a) Reduction in share capital

Under Cdn. GAAP, a company is permitted to eliminate or reduce its deficit against contributed surplus and share
capital. The Company reduced its deficit by $172,928,000, which was equal to the accumulatedldeflmt as at December 31, 2005
prior to the change in accounting policy (note 2). Also, capital stock was reduced by $165,628, 000 and contributed surplus was
reduced by $3,300,000. For U.S. GAAP purposes the elimination of the deficit was reversed as thls is not permitted under U.S.
GAAP. '
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I
(1} As a result of applying the modified prospective method for U.S. GAAP, the stock-based compensation recognized

under Cdn. GAAP prior to 2004 of $45;8,000 has been reversed against contributed surplus by $419,000 and capital
stock by $48,000 as, under U.S. GAAP, recognition is not required for options granted before January 1, 2004. In
2006, the value of options exercised :of $28,000 (2005 - $382,000} was transferred from contributed surplus to capital
stock. As permitted under Cdn. GAAP the Company chooses not to estimate forfeitures at the grant date when
calculating the stock-based compensation expense. For U.S. GAAP an estimated farfeiture of 10.9% was used

to calculate the stock-based compepsation expense. Accordingly, the Company recorded an increase in earnings
of $136,000 {2005 and 2004 - $Nil), a r;eduction of contributed surplus of $134,000 (2005 - $Nil} and a reduction

of capital stock of $2,000 (2005 - $Nil). The fair value at grant date of stock options is estimated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model.’ Compensation expense is recognized over the stock option vesting period.

(2} Under U.S. GAAP, options granted to non-employees would be fair valued and accounted as compensation
expense. Under present Cdn. GAAP, effective January 1, 2002, options can be valued under either the intrinsic
value method or the fair value method. In accordance with Cdn. GAAP in effect prior to January 1, 2002, the -
Company did not recognize compenrsation expense for options granted to non-employees. For purposes of
determining the compensation expense under U.S, GAAP, the fair value of the options of $48,000 was estimated
on the balance sheet date using Black-Scholes option-pticing model.

(3) Ouring 2001, as part of an employment agreement with a former senior personnel, the Company had granted stock
options to this individual, which fully vested on the date of the grant. The‘ Company has accounted for the options in
accordance with the Company’s Ac:lzounting Policy for stock options at that time. Under U.S. GAAP the direct award
of the stock was accounted for at thle fair value of $156,000 on the date of the award using Black-Scholes
option-pricing model.

i) Cumulative translation adjustment account
Under Cdn. GAAP the unrealized trans!atmn gains and losses on the Companys net investment in self-sustammg
operations translated usmg the current rate method accumulate in a separate. component of shareholders equity descrlbed :
as "Cumulative translation adjustment” on the c:onsolldated balance sheet. Under U.S. GAAP, these unrea‘llzed foreign
exchange gains and losses would not accumulate in a separate component of shareholders’ equity but rather as an

adjustment to other comprehensive income.

k} Accounts payable and accrued Ilabllmesr
Included in accounts payable and accrued Ilabllmes under 11.S. GAAP are amounts for accounts payable and accrued

expenses, respectively, as follows:

by e A
eAccounts paya ¥
- 2 ’{'»"ﬂq(_fr
Payroll and severance

A SA P ’4; -’ﬂ? :
Mar to arket of metal forward;sale and call ,options

|
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I} Comprehensive income {loss)
Under SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income”, all components of comprehensive income {loss)
are to be reported in the period in which they are recognized. An entity must classify items of other comprehensive
income by their nature "in a financial statement and disclose the accumulated balance of other comprehensive income

separately from retalne‘d earnings {deficit} and additional paid in capital. The accumulated comprehenswe loss
for 2006 is $1,897,000 t2005 $15,110,000) and the other comprehensive income for 2006 is $181, 801 oo
(2005 - $4,106,000; 2004,‘ $2,231,000).

Effective Janua;ry 1, 2007 Cdn. GAAP under S1530 will adopt a similar standard to SFAS No. 130, see note 1.
m} Income and miﬁing taxes
For Cdn. GAAP the income tax valuation allowance applied to deferred tax assets is $22I3,417,000. Under U.S. GAAP the
{1
tax effact of the changes to earnings reduces the income tax valuation allowance by 35,030,000 {2005 - $Nil) to $221,387,000.
|

n} Recent accounfing pronouncements

U.S. Standards ,

FIN 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, clarifies accounting for income taxes by prescribing a
minimum recognition threshold a tax benefit is required to meet before being recognized. A comllnany waould be required
to recognize the best estnmate of & tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustamed upon examination,
based solely on the technical merits of the position. This change is effective beginning in 2007. The Company has not yet
determined the impact pf adopting FIN 48.

SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements” {*FAS 157"} issued in September 2006 defines fair, value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value of assets and liabilities, and expands disclasures about fair |\.rialue measurements. FAS 157
applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value FAS 157 does not expand
the use of fair value in any new circumstances. FAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and
should be applied prosqectlvely. The Company has not yet determined the impact of adopting SFAS 157.

: _ I
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